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City of Fortuna p.o. Box 545 • Fortuna, CA 95540 

www.friendlyfortuna.com 

February 25, 2012 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of 
the City Council and Citizens of the City 
of Fortuna 

The City follows a policy of preparing a complete set of ~inanciar statements in conformity with 
U.S. generally accepted accoUfltingprinciples after the end of each fisc,al year. This report is 
published to fulfill that policy for the fiscal. year ended Jlme 30,2011. . 

Management of the City of Fortufla.assumes full responsibility for the compl~eness and reliability 
of the information contained il(tlhisreport, based upon a comprehensive frame-work of internal 
control that the City has estaR.i~beclfor this purpose. Because the cost of intes:nal control should 
not exceed anticipated benefiJ$,.theobjective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance that the City's financiai statements are free of material misstatements. 

The firm of/Terry E.Krieg, Certifjec;l ,Public Accountant, has issued an unquarifiedindependent 
auditor's repprt on the Cily6f Fortuna's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2011. The independent attditor"s report is . located at the front of the fina·ncial sectipn of this 
report. . .' .. 

Management's DiscussionandAl'lalysis{~MD&A)immediately follows the independent auditor's 
report and provides anatr'~tiveinttoduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial 
statements. The MD&A complernentsthis.letter of transmittal.and should be read in conjunction 
with it. 

PROFILE OF THECtTy AND ITS OPERATIONS 

The City of Fortuna wasincotporatetHn 19Q6.The City is located on the North Coast of California 
about 260 miles north of San Francisco. . 

The City~s home to about 11,364individuals, and its boundariesell(!ompass 4.8 square miles. The 
City's population has been growing.by a rate of about 1.5 percent annually over the last ten years. 
About 500 new homes have been btlilt in the City over the last ten years, altoough this trend has 
slowed somewhat. 

Educational, health and .soclal services is the largest employment categ'ory, followed by retail 
trade and manufacturing. The timber industry .has dec.lined significantly, leaving agriculture as the 
pillar in our local economy. . 

The City operates under a councit-manager form of government. policy making and legislative 
authority are vested in the City Council consisting of the Mayor and four other elected Council 
members. The Council is responsible, among other matters, for passing ordinances, adopting the 
City budget, appointing committees, and hiring the City Manager. The City Manager is responsible 
for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for overseeing the daily 
operations of the City, and for appointing other employees and otherwise managing daily 
operations of the City. The Council is elected to four year staggered terms, with two members 
elected every two years. The Mayor is selected by and serves at the pleasure of the City Council 
for a two-year term. 

City Hall Police Department Parks and Recreation Public Works 
(707) 725-7600 (707) 725-7550 (707) 725-7620 (707) 725-7650 

Fax (707) 725-7610 Fax (707) 725-7574 Fax (707) 725-7576 Fax (707) 725-7651 

621 11 th Street 621 11th Street 5 Park Street 180 Dinsmore Drive 



2012 

The 

businesses. 

a full range of services 
streets, storm drains, and similar 

police nl"t'lt"'f"Ti .... 

infrastructure 
business type recreation activities. In 

transit !'::'.I~t!!"m,~ a fashion similar to that used 

The annual serves as the foundation for the of financial and 
control system. All departments of the submit requests for appropriations 

~n;:uu'l'annually. The Manageruses these as a starting point for a OnlD()Se,a 

budget. The Manager presents a proposed budget to the Councit The Council holds 
hearings on the proposed budget and then adopts a formal budget. The. budget is 
adopted function, department and object. The Council periodically reviews during the 
fiscal year City's actual fincancial activity in relationship to the original as 
necessary, amends the originalbudget to reflect conditions. 

Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for each govemmentalfund for an 
appropriated annual budget has beenadopted. The general fund's comparison, . . the 
City's major fund under the new reporting standards, is presented as required supplementary 
information in a separatesecth:m of this report immediately following the notes to the financial 
statements. For the City's other govemmentai-typefunds, a budget to actual 
schedule is presented as optional information in the of this containing "' .... """'" .... 
financial statements and individl..lalfund schedules. 

Local 

The .""'" .... "".,,. rate Humboldt December 2011 was 11"0 no,".-.. ,m, 
11.3 "":',,r.U'n for the State. This was a decrease of almost one 1"''''''I'(,<>lI''If 

The labor force decreased during the year 385 to 60,900. 

About 44 oHhe City's general fund revenues come the local transit occupancy 
sales tax revenues, franchisefees,and local property taxes. In fiscal 2011, revenues from these 
types of taxes inthe aggregate increased by almost 15 percent over The sales the 

most revenue source,increasedabout 11 n .. ",,,.,ny 

The that transit occupancy tax: and sates revenues not grow in 
the 2012 fiscal year; but we expect that these revenues will remain stable. The to 
monitor these revenue sources in given recent economic and national events in 
order to evaluate the of the City's 2012 financial 

Financial 

The in fiscal year 2012, eX!De~~ts the local economy to remain but the 
in both the state and national the continues to monitor the situation 
to deal with this in the most Planned 
and Wastewater funds will 
as t.o 

; i 



Initiatives 

111 fiscal 2011 the State was faced with an estimated $25.4 billion bl.!ltiOi'!Jt 

solutions was the of AS 1X 26 AS 1X 27. Under the 

agency, 
agree to in" to the 
annual payments to the 

would 

t-towever, on December 29,2011,theSupreme Court issued a ruling that upheld AS and 
turned down AB 1X 27, with a modified timeline for dissolution. The effective date of dissolution 
for all redevelopment &igenciesin California is February 1, 2012. 

While the full impact ofthes~actions will take some time to it is ciear thatthe 
consequences for the City of Fortuna will be severe. Theensnt to which they may affect the 
2011/2012 fiscal year and futurexears is a major concem to the City. The immediate 
be addressed in the 2012/2013 fiscal year budget. 

The preparation ofihis reportwolil(inothavebeen possible without the efficient and dedicated 
services of the entire slaffofthe fimmceand administration departmentl!). We would like to 
express our appn:ciation toalLmembers of the departments who assisted and contributed to the 
preparation of this report. Credit must given to the Mayor and the Members of the 

and the CilyManager for their continued support formaintainll1gthe standards 
of professionalism in the management of the City of Fortuna's financial affairs. 
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Terry E. Krieg, CPA 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the City Council 

City of Fortuna 
Fortuna, California 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Fortuna, California, (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011 which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of 
Fortuna's management. My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. 

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. Those standards require that 
I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinions. 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position ofthe govemmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Fortuna, California, as of June 
30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the City, including its blended component unit redevelopment agency, 
will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 5-1 to these financial statements, the California Supreme Court announced its ruling 
upholding Assembly Bill1X 26 (dissolution of redevelopment agencies), but overturning Assembly BiII1X 27 (allowing redevelopment agencies to 
continue with voluntary payments to the regulatory bodies). The ruling provides for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies effective February 
1, 2012. Management's understanding in regard to these matters is also discussed in Note 5 -I to these financial statements. The blended 
component unit redevelopment agency of the City represents about 43 percent of the total assets of all City governmental funds, about 13 percent 
of the total revenues of all City governmental funds, and about 44 percent of the total fund balances of all City governmental funds. The City's 
governmental funds (primarily the City's general fund) also include $5,497,635 in long-tern advances receivable by the City and payable by its 
redevelopment agency. These financial statements do not include any adjustments that will result from the dissolution provisions of the Court's 
ruling. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary 
Comparison Information on pages 2 through 11 and pages 41 through 44 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other information I obtained during 
my audit of the financial statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide me with sufficient evidence to express or provide any assurance. 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of Fortuna's basic 
financial statements. The accompanying combining nonmajor fund financial statements and individual fund schedules are presented for the 
purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements orlo 
the financial statemenJs themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In my opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

rv)y audit was condl!Q~d for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements the collectively comprise the City of Fortuna's basic 
financial stateIT)entS. The accompanying introductory section and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part oHhe bjasic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements, and accordingly, I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.As discussed in note 5-J to these financial 
statements,the City in fiscal year 2011, implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 54, Fund 
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type definitions. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated January 31, 2012 on my consideration of the City of 
Fortuna's internal control over financial fE;l,P<lIjing and on my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements and other matters. Thep,urpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results ofth~ttesting, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 

roport I: ~:i:ji "",of .0 "dll perto~'" '0 """d.ore wffh Govemmeol A""'09 Slaod"d, aod ,ho"1d be ",,,lde,ed '0 "",,'og the 

t.~t12 
131-A Stony Circie, Suite 500 

707-544-5684 

Santa Rosa, California 95401 

Kriegcpa@msl1.com 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

This section of the City of Fortuna's annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the 
City's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2011. Please read it in 
conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the City's financial statements, which 
follow this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The City's total net assets increased by about $3.4 million over the course of this year's operations, 
comprised of $2.2 million in our business-type activities and $1.2 million from our governmental 
activities. This brings the total business-type assets to about $33.9 million and our governmental assets 
to about $27.5 million at the end of 2011. 

• During the year, the City's expenses for governmental activities were funded by $3.9 million in charges 
for services, grants, and contributions from other governments and by about $5.5 million generated in 
taxes and other revenues for governmental programs. 

• In the City's business-type activities, revenues increased about 4 percent to $6.3 million while expenses 
were consistent with last fiscal year at $4.1 million. 

• The general fund reported a year end fund balance of about $9.7 million, a decrease of about $20,000 
over the 2010 fiscal year. 

• The City also ended the year with $11.9 million reported in the proprietary enterprise funds (the amount 
of net assets available for use both restricted and unrestricted but excluding the investment of capital 
assets net of related debt). 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of five parts - an introductory section, a management's discussion and 
analysis (this section), the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and an 
optional section that presents combining statements for non-major governmental funds and comparative 
statements for the City's enterprise funds. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements 
that present different views of the City: 

• The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and 
short-term information about the City's overall financial status. 

• The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City 
government, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 
- The governmental funds statements tell how general government services like public safety were 

financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 
- Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the activities the 

government operates like businesses, such as the water and wastewater system. 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial 
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. 
In addition to these required elements, we have included a section with combining statements that 
provide details about our non-major funds, each of which are added together and presented in single 
columns in the basic financial statements. We have also included comparative financial statements for 
our water and wastewater funds' business-type activities. 

2 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the 
City government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview 
section of management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the 
statements. 

FigureA.1 

Major Features of City of Fortuna's Government·Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Scope 

Govemment·Wide 
Statements 

Entire city government 

Fund Statements 

Governmental Funds 

The activities of the City that 
are not proprietary or fiduciary, 
such as police and parks 

Proprietary Funds 

Activities the City operates similar 
to private businesses: the water, 
sewer, and transit systems. 

Required financial 
statements Statement of net assets • Balance sheet Statement of net assets 

Statement of revenues 
expenses, and changes in 
net assets Statement of activities 

Accounting basis and Accrual accounting and 
.;m,;,;;e;;;a;;;s~uf~e;;.;.m;;;e,;,;;nt;,,;~,;;;oc;;;u;;;s ___ economic resoufces focus 

All assets and liabilities, both 
Type of assetlliability financial and capital, and short-

..::in.:,:;fo::;r,:,,:,m;;;a:::;tio::;n.:.... _____ term and long-term 

All revenues and expenses 
Type of inflow/outflow during year, regardless of 

..::in.:,:;fo::;rm.:.:,;;;a:::;tio::;n.:.... _____ when cash is received or paid 

Government-Wide Statements 

Statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances 

Modified accrual accounting 
and current financial reSOUfCes 
focus 

Only assets expected to be 
used up and liabilities that 
come due during the year or 
soon thereafter; no capital 
assets inel uded 

Revenues for which cash is 
received during or soon after 
the end of the year; 
expenditures when goods or 
services have been received 
and payment is due during the 
year or soon thereafler 

Statement of cash flows 

Accrual accounting and economic 
resources focus 

All assets and liabilities, both 
financial and capital, and short­
term and long-term 

All revenues and expenses during 
year, regardless of when cash is 
received or paid 

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes all the 
government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in 
the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

3 



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net 
assets - the difference between the City's assets and liabilities - is one way to measure the City's 
financial health, or position. 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are an indicator of whether its financial health 
is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories: 

• Govemmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are included here, such as general 
government, police, streets, public works, parks and recreation and redevelopment. Property taxes, 
sales taxes, transient occupancy taxes, other taxes, user charges and fees, and state and federal 
grants finance most of these activities . 

• Business-type activities - The City charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain 
services it provides. The City's water, wastewater, and transit systems are included here. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds -
not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources 
of funding and spending for particular purposes. 

• Some funds are required by State law such as the State Gas Tax Funds and Redevelopment Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Fund. 

• The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to 
show that it is property using certain taxes and grants (such as the City's HOME Grant Fund, CDBG 
Grant Fund, and Supplemental COPS Fund). Other funds are maintained to demonstrate the City's 
ability to repay its long-term debt obligations such as the Redevelopment Agency Debt Service Fund. 

The City has two kinds of funds: 

• Govemmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds, which 
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out 
and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental 
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more 
or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. 
Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide 
statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement, or on 
the subsequent page, that explains the relationship (or differences) between them. 

• Proprietary funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in 
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long-and short­
term financial information. 

- In fact, the City's enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type 
activities, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. 

4 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Assets. The City's combined net assets increased about $3.3 million between fiscal years 2010 and 
2011. (See Table A-1.) 

Table A-1 
City of Fortuna's Net Assets 

(in nillions of dollars) 

Total 
Percentage 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Change 

2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 
.,. 

2010-2011 

Current and other assets $ 38.7 $ 37.6 $ 21.6 $ 22.6 $ 60.3 $ 60.2 -0.2% 
Capital assets 5.6 8.:! 32.3 33.2 37.9 41.4 9.2% 
Total assets 44.3 45.8 53.9 55.8 98.2 101.6 3.5% 

Long-term debt 
outstanding 16.9 16.6 21.4 21.0 38.3 37.6 -1.9% 
Other liabilities 1.1 1.7 0.9 1.0 2.0 2.7 35.0% 
Total liabilities 18.0 18.3 22.3 22.0 40.3 40.3 -0.1% 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets (7.3) (5.5) 19.3 22.0 12.0 16.5 37.5% 
Restricted 27.2 27.3 3.7 3.2 30.9 30.5 -1.3% 
Unrestricted 6.4 5.7 8.7 8.7 15.1 14.4 -4.6% 
Total net assets $ 26.3 $ 27.5 $ 31.7 $ 33.9 $ 58.0 $ 61.4 5.9% 

Net assets of the City's governmental activities increased 1 percent to $27.5 million over last fiscal year. 
The City has $16.6 million in long-term debt relating to assets used in its governmental activities. The 
City's net capital assets at year end, $5.6 million, represent 20% of the net assets. 

The increase in the net assets of the City's governmental activities in fiscal year 2010-11 was due 
primarily to the recognition of nearly $1.5 million in federal, state and other grant revenues, while other 
revenues and expense remained relatively stable. 

The net assets of our business-type activities increased to $33.9 million, these resources cannot be used 
for governmental activities. The City generally can only use these net assets to finance the continuing 
operations of the water, wastewater and transit systems. 

5 



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF niE CITY AS A W.-IOLE 

total revenues increased 13.4 ",,,,rre.'nt 

Table revenue comes from transient 
and other taxes. Another 48 comes from fees for "",,,,'>I'C'",,,, 
is from state and federal aid and other revenues such as unrestricted investment 

The total cost of all programs services increased to about 
cover a range of with about 32 

of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2011 

Governmental .Activities 

Other Taxes 

Functional 1-""I">"U"<1l:"',O:: for 2011 

Ali Other 
17% 

Water 
Sewer 
32% 

General 
,Admin 

Parks and 
Recreation 

140/0 

Public 

24% 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Sales Taxes were up by 15% in fiscal 2011, while property and transient occupancy taxes experienced 
modest increases. 

Table A-2 
Changes in the City of Fortuna's Net Assets 

(in millions of dollars) 

Total 
Governmental Business-type Percentage 

Activities Activities Total Change 

2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010-2011 '" 

Revenues 
Program revenues 

Charges for services $1.4 $1.6 $5.8 $5.9 $7.2 $7.5 4.2% 
Grants and contributions 1.2 2.3 0.3 0.4 1.5 2.7 86.2% 

General revenues 
Sales taxes 1.3 1.5 0.0 0.0 1.3 1.5 15.4% 
Property and other taxes 2.4 2.4 0.0 0.0 2.4 2.4 0.0% 
Other 1.5 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.5 1.6 6.7% 

Total revenues 7.8 9.4 6.1 6.3 13.9 15.7 13.4% 

Expenses 
General government 1.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.1 10.0% 
Public safety 2.9 3.0 0.0 0.0 2.9 3.0 3.4% 
Streets 1.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.5 -50.0% 
Parks and recreation 1.0 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.6 60.0% 
Sanitation 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 100.0% 
Redevelopment and housing 1.1 0.5 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.5 -54.5% 
Water 0.0 0.0 1.3 1.5 1.3 1.5 15.4% 
wastewater 0.0 0.0 2.6 2.4 2.6 2.4 -7.7% 
Transit 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0% 
Other 1.0 1.3 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.3 30.0% 
Total expenses 8.1 8.2 4.1 4.1 12.2 12.3 0.8% 
Excess (deficiency) before -0.3 1.2 2.0 2.2 1.7 3.4 106.1% 
Transfers 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Increase (decrease) in net -$0.3 $1.2 $2.0 $2.2 $1.7 $3.4 106.1% 

Net Assets, beginning of year 26.6 26.3 29.7 31.7 56.3 58.0 
Net Assets, end of year 26.3 27.5 31.7 33.9 58.0 61.4 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WliOlE 

Net assets from Governmental activities increased 1.2 million 
decrease. net assets increased more in the 
the increase in Water and Wastewater structures and "'''''Ta,."c 

nr"'''''''!nt", the cost of each of the programs - administration or "Q"""rell 

and rQr",o<,t,,·, and and other 
programs-

@ The cost of all activities this year was an increase of about 
to fiscal 2010. 

~ the amount that T"'·~n<>\i<'r'" for these activities taxes was about nlillion. 
Some of the cost was 

- Those who benefited from the programs .6 or 

"<:Il·ln..-.. " that subsidized certain with and contributions 

• The million benefit" rlf'""lrtlf'ln out of the 
as property taxes, transit occupancy sales 
and investment and fund reserves. 

Table A-3 
Cost of City of Fortl.II1il1's Programs 

(in m ,!lions of dollars) 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Streets 

Parks and recreation 

Redevelopment & Hous ing 

All Other 

Total 

Total Cost of 
Services 

2010 2011 

$1.0 $1 

2.9 3.0 

O.f) 

'1.0 .6 

1.1 0.5 

1'1 1.5 

$8:1 $8,2 

Percentage 

2010-201'1' 

10.0% 

3.4{}o 

-50.0% 

60.0% 

-54.5% 

36.4% ------_. 
1_2% 
~~; 

The increase in the costs of Public in addition to normal cost were also caused an 
increase in the share of pension ";;'<'i"",,"' made to the PERS as we!! as increased health care 
costs. The decrease in due to reduced in the COBG 
programs including senior services and 

Activities 
activities increased to about million. revenues 
to the nr..-""",,, rate increases to pay for the debt service issued 

Revenues of the 
increased about 
in October 2006 
vacancies 

expenses decreased about in fiscal 201 as a result of nl",r'Of',nn 
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------------------------------------------------ -------------------------------------------------
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

--------------------.-----------------------------------------------------------------------

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

Governmental Funds 

,-nlT"-1"""''''''' the year, its funds r",rv\r-'''''''' a combined fund balance of 
.8 million less than the last fiscal year. 

Funds-Governmental 

exceeded revenues about due to 
t'j"'n"'t"~ fund started the 2011 fiscal year with a fund balance of 9.7 

million. 

After 7 million fund balance_ Of this 
about 7 million is invested in ''''''"."'''''''.--.,, resources, is restricted for ",tr,,,,,,,10",, 

restricted for Public restricted for Recreation and Youth activities, 
committed for construction and about $5 million is available to start the 2012 year. 

The City's HOME Grant Fund ended 2011 with a 
from the fund in 2011, and the fund received about 

thousand fund balance, There were no ov."",.." 
2 thousand in interest and loan payment revenues. 

The Redevelopment Agency Administration Fund ended 2011 with a million fund balance_ 
During the 2011 fiscal year, this fund received about $1,1 million in incremental tax revenues 
and expended about $144,000 for economic and redevelopment activities. In the 
Agency also paid 3 to the State for the Supplemental Educational Revenue rnoint""ih,...n Fund 

The 
fund 

"",;)nt"" Bond Debt Service Fund ended the year with a million fund 
the 2011 fiscal year, this fund received about in interest revenues, and 

for debt service. 

loan Debt Service Fund ended the year with a million dollar 

Hlnnn,:o>"-,,, Funds- Governmental 

In funds ended t.he 2011 fiscal year with a combined fund 
fund about is restricted for Business 

is restricted for .4 
and business million is 

million is restricted for Economic 
fund. There is about a 2.5 million fund balance in 2007 Bond which is 

restricted to fund The can be used for the fund's 
projects or activities. 

Genera! Fund 

The Council the fiscal 20·10 .. 2011 
revisions over the course of the year Actual 

less than amounts. Actua! 
more than amounts 

9 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FINANCIAL ANAL YSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

Business-Type Funds 

The City's water enterprise ended 2011 with an unrestricted cash position of about $3.3 million and about 
$8.4 million set aside as debt service reserves and for capital projects. This fund also generated about 
$800,000 in operating income for the year. 

The wastewater enterprise ended 2011 with an unrestricted cash position of about $5.4 million and about 
$4.3 million set aside as debt service reserves and for capital projects. This fund also generated about 
$1,120,000 in operating income for the year. 

The transit fund ended 2011 with about $77,000 in cash available for operations. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2011, the City had invested $41.4 million (net of accumulated depreciation) in a broad range 
of capital assets, including land, equipment, vehicles, buildings, park facilities, and water and sewer 
systems. (See Table A-4.) This amount represents a net increase (including additions and deductions) of 
about $3.5 million, or 9.2 percent more than last year. 

Table A-4 

Fortuna's Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation, in millions of dollars) 
Total 

Govemmental Business-type Percentage 
Activities Activities Total Change 

2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010-11 --------
Land $1.1 $1.0 $0.2 $0.2 $1.3 $1.2 -7.7% 

Construction in progress 0.2 1.5 4.0 2.1 4.2 3.6 -14.3% 

Buildings. structures & systems 1.8 1.8 27.8 29.0 29.6 30.8 4.1% 

Machinery and equipment 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.1 0.5 1.3 160.0% 

Vehicles 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.8 0.3 1.0 233.3% 

Infrastructure 1.4 2.8 0.0 0.0 1.4 2.8 100.0% 

Improvements 0.6 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.7 16.7% --------
Total $6.5 $8.2 $32.4 $33.2 $37.9 $41.4 9.2% 

=== 

This year's major capital assets additions included: 

This fiscal year, there was a major increase in buildings, structures and systems, as the Vancil Street 
Reservoir and the water meter reading telemetry system was completed and placed into service. 
Additional information about the City's capital assets can be found on pages 31 through 32 of the notes to 
the basic financial statements. 

Long - Term Debt 

At the end of fiscal 2011, the City had $37,445,000 in revenue bonds outstanding. Debt outstanding on 
those bond issues was reduced by $685,000 during the fiscal year. The revenue bonds are paid from the 
water, wastewater, and debt service funds. Additional information about the City's long-term debt 
obligations can be found on pages 34 through 37 of the notes to the basic financial statements. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES 

For the 2012 fiscal year, the City's adopted budget contains the following financial assumptions and 
structure: 

• Any reduction in Vehicle License Fees or Sales Tax revenue from implementation of the "triple flip" 
will continue to be fully backfilled by the State through the County of Humboldt. 

• The amounts allocated to the City by other governmental agencies will not be changed significantly, 
and funding levels in other governmental type funds will remain at the same levels as they were in 
fiscal year 2011. 

• General fund total revenues will remain about the same excluding anyone-time grant allocations from 
other governments. 

• Total appropriations for the 2010-2011 fiscal year for all funds is set at $25.2 million, which is a 2 
percent decrease compared to the adopted 2010-2011 fiscal year budget. 

General fund 2012 budgeted appropriations are set at about $5.7 million, which is about a 17 percent 
decrease compared to 2011 appropriations. In fiscal 2012, the City expects that the employer's share of 
retirement contributions to the PERS will increase by about $35,400, as the PERS investment returns 
have declined in recent years and the employer contribution rates are being raised to offset the decline. 
The City also expects the employer share of health insurance premiums to increase by about $148,000 in 
fiscal 2012. 

On June 28, 2011, as part of the 2011-2012 State of California budget bill, companion bills Assembly Bill 
1X 26 ("AB 26") and Assembly BiII1X 27 ("AB 27") were enacted, dissolving the Redevelopment Agency 
of the City of Fortuna ("Agency"), unless the City of Fortuna ("City") elected to partiCipate in the 
"Alternative Voluntary Redevelopment Program" established by AB 27 and agreed to pay an annual 
"community remittance" payment to the County of Humboldt. On July 18, 2011, a Petition for Writ of 
Mandate was filed in the Supreme Court of the State of California in the matter of California 
Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et al., Case No. S194861 ("Legal Action"), 
challenging the constitutionality of AB 26 and AB 27 on behalf of cities, counties and redevelopment 
agencies. 

On December 29, 2011, the Supreme Court issued its opinion in the Legal Action, upholding AB 26, 
invalidating AB 27, extending certain statutory deadlines under Health and Safety Code Sections 34170 
through 34191, and dissolving all redevelopment agencies throughout the State, effective February 1, 
2012. 

While all the ramifications are still unclear, it is certain that this will be the last fiscal year the City will 
receive annual loan payments of $773,949 for the City's general fund, which amounts to almost 16% of its 
total revenues and all Redevelopment activities are ended. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors 
with a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it 
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the 
Finance Director, City of Fortuna, 621 Eleventh Street, P.O. Box 545, Fortuna, California 95540. 
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ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash 
Net receivables 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 

Bond issuance costs 
assets not 
assets 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
:rm,,,,,,,,.,,,,t,,,rl absences 

Unearned revenue 

Accrued interest oa,rablie 
r'""titif'<>t"", and notes 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
n.:>""",ton absences 

and notes 
Premium from sale of 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in 
debt 
Hestricted for 

Debt service 

Streets 
Other purposes 

LJ nrestricted 

assets, net of related 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Statement of Net Assets 

June 2011 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 

5,471,444 

540,748 

$ 

58,147 

1 

33 

notes to the basic financial statements 
12 

Business 
Activities 

$ 8,721,718 

$ 

64,735 

21 

.211,452 

$ 

$ 

60,981 

726 
139,50f) 

'I 
'1,069,806 

64,196 

36,690,000 

3,282,500 
2,983,854 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
Statement of Activities 

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 
Net (Expenses) Revenue and 

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets 

City Government 
Operating Capital Grants 

Charges for Grants and and Governmental Business-type 
EXl!enses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total -------------- -----

Functions/Programs 
City government 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 1,109,738 $ 33,163 $ $ $ (1,076,575) $ $ (1,076,575) 
Public safety 3,036,608 358,339 474,220 (2,204,049) (2,204,049) 
Streets 556,344 147,175 302,865 1,197,508 1,091,204 1,091,204 
Parks and recreation 1,659,843 624,506 1,400 369,756 (664,181) (664,181) 
Sanitation 24,938 22,872 (2,066) (2,066) 
Redevelopment and housing 462,096 454,885 (7,211) (7,211) 
Interest on long-term debt 1,367,783 (1 ,367,783~ (1,367,783~ 

Total governmental activities 8,217,350 1,640,940 7781485 1,567,264 (4,230,661} (4,230,661 } 
Business-Type Acrivities: 

Water 1,478,601 2,313,537 19,486 854,422 854,422 
Wastewater 2,449,904 3,602,361 200,620 1,353,077 1,353,077 
Transit 181,779 11,204 163,688 6,600 (28n (287~ 

Total business-type activities 4,110,284 5,927,102 163,688 226,706 2,207,212 21207,212 

Total City government $ 12,327,634 $ 7,568,D42 $ 942,173 $ 1,793,970 (4,230,661 ) 2,207,212 (2,023,449) 

General revenues and transfers: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 342,196 342,196 
Incremental property taxes 1,126,845 1,126,845 
Sales taxes 1,464,916 1,464,916 
Transient occupancy taxes 472,144 472,144 
Other taxes 464,119 464,119 

Other general revenues: 
Motor vehicle in lieu fees not restricted to a 
a specific program 1,001,771 1,001,771 

Unrestricted investment earnings 502,414 502,414 
Other general revenues 73,026 73,026 

Transfers 9,303 (91303~ 
~---.--.---.-~-----.-

Total general revenues and transfers 5,456,734 (9,303) 5,447,431 

Change in net assets 1,226,073 2,197,909 3,423,982 

Net assets, beginning 26,294,933 31,659,503 57,954,436 

Net assets, ending $ 27,521,006 $ 33,857,412 $ 61,378,418 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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ASSETS 
Cash 
i\c(,,{Junts receivable 
Taxes feceivabi9 
OU~} from other governments 
Proposition i.A, feC8!Vab!e 
Accrued interest receivable 
Inventory 
Prepayments 
AdvanCeS to other funds 
Notes receivabk'7 
l.ease receivab!e 
Land held for resaie 

Totai as!5ets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts 
Accrued 
Compensated absences 
Deposits 
Advances from other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Totai !iabilitles 

Fund ba!ances· 

Restricted for c..qpita( projects 
Restricted for eee facility 
Restricted for redevelopment 

debt senriee 
Restricted for streets 
Hestrided for business development 
Restricted for public safety 
Restricted for museum] recreation 
and youth activities 

11.316 
139,506 

38.275 
11,436 
30,548 

4,637,050 
1.320 

4.679,034 

717,352 

15.863 

321,604 
600,000 

$ 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Balance 5hool 

Governmenta! funds 
J",,~ 30. 2011 

1,506,7/}O $ 4,202.029 $ 

$ 

5,497,635 

2,283,513 

4,202.029 

Oth€f 
Gu"em~a! T ota! Governmental 

_~~f>!r:.9_''''_n_t$_ ~:'::~:"l':,~,~,_ ._~F_"_nd_$ _____ ~~!~~_<_ 

$ 37 $ 

7.91\495 

$12,211,8()1 $ 

99,370 

860,585 
2,149,'778 

19,903 
30;[:;1 i 

84.615 

402,201 
139,506 

38,275 
11,436 
30,548 

5,497,635 
10,066,593 

?Tuse: 

5,497,635 
" 7,91£,~~. _ .... ____ . _ 3.46.:S].1L _~ ... _l1E19,29:) 

3/,341 

203.370 

799.807 
1,776 

2,104 
2.031,246 

369 

799,80"1 
7,T16 

4,204,133 
2,951,988 

369 
15,863 

Committed for police facility 
Unassigned _ . .Jl230504 ,, ___ ~.,_ ._ .. _____ ,_,,_(5,49{E,~Eil _~ _______ ,_~ __ _ ~Z,58~ " 

321,604 
600,000 

{1,699,5421-

T otai fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

Total Governmental Fund B8Ianc[~s 

Amounts reported for governmental activiii(1s in ihe 
staterl1(~nt of net assets are different because: 

Caoital assets usoo in qovernmental activities are not 
financiaf resources and therefore are not reported in the funds 
Bond issuance costs are not current financial resources anod am not reported as fund assets 
Long·-term receivables used in govertlmental activities are not 
current financiai resources and are therefore are deferred the funds 
Some liabilities, including bonds, leases, compensated 
absences, and accrued interest am not due and payable the current period 
and 8f e therefore not reported in the funds 

Net Assets of GOVi:1rnmenta! .Activities 
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$ 24,913,594 

!,622,3O:J 
540,748 

·11,519,293 

iF 074 932'1 __ , ~~ru_~"l_L 

~=f?:.~22.:~:?..~ 



Genel1llFund 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 342,196 
Sales taxes 1,464,916 
Other taxes 936,263 
Special assessments 
Licenses and permits 121,116 
Fines and forfeits 85,862 
Intergovernmental 1,802,599 
Interest 502,414 
Charges for services 803,882 
Miscellaneous 125,162 

T atal revenues 6,184,410 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 967,133 
Public safety 2,980,984 
Highway and streets 320,763 
Parks and recreation 1,073,240 
Health and welfare 
Economic development and 
and redevelopment 

Education SERAF payments 
Capital outlay 1,787,959 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

T atal expenditures 7,110,059 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (925,649) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
(USES) 
Transfers in 1,229,844 
Transfers out (324,211) 

T atal ather financing 
sources (uses) 905,633 

Net change in fund balances (20,016) 

Fund balances, July 1 9,684,373 

Fund balances, June 30 $ 9,664,357 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Redevelopment Redevelopment Redevelopment 
Agency Agency Bond Debt Agency City Loan 

Administration Service Debt service HOME Grants 

$ 1,126,845 $ $ $ 

17,231 8,496 155 
1,300 

12,156 

1,145,376 8,496 12,311 

144,174 
94,613 

60,000 
466,631 569,286 

238,787 526,631 569,286 

906,589 (518,135) (569,286) 12,311 

518,135 773,949 
(1,574,894) 

(1,574,894) 518,135 773,949 

(668,305) 204,663 12,311 

2,951,818 4,202,029 (5,702,298) 25,030 

$ 2,283,513 $ 4,202,029 $ (5,497,635) $ 37,341 

See accompanying nates to the basic financial statements 
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Other 
Regional Surface Governmental Total Governmental 
Transportation Funds Funds 

$ $ $ 1,469,041 
1,484,916 

936,263 
50,853 50,853 

121,116 
85,862 

1,021,515 478,899 3,303,013 
2,733 141,636 672,665 

63,771 868,953 
296,714 434,032 

1,024,248 1,031,873 9,406,714 

967,133 
2,960,984 

22,563 401,736 745,062 
1,073,240 

24,938 24,938 

167,112 311,286 
94,613 

1,430,503 178,094 3,396,556 

220,000 280,000 
324,637 1,360,554 

1,453,066 1,316,517 11,214,346 

(428,818) (284,644) (1,807,632) 

851,882 3,373,810 
(1,465,402) (3,364,507) 

(613,520) 9,303 

(428,818) (898,164) (1,798,329) 

632,188 14,918,783 26,711,923 

$ 203,370 $ 14,020,619 $ 24,913,594 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of 
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as 
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays 
($3,155,846) exceed depreciation ($ 494,653) in the current period. 

Repayments of long-term debt principal is an expenditure 
in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces liabilities in the 
statement of net assets. 

Amortization of bond issuance costs are not a use of current financial resources and 
and are not reported in the funds 

Amortization of premiums from the sale of bonds do not provide current financial 
resources and are not reported in the funds 

Governmental funds report interest expenditures when due, but these costs 
are accrued as an expense in the statement of net assets 

Governmental funds report compensated absences when payments are made or 
are immediately due. However, in the statement of activities these costs are 
recorded when incurred. 

Governmental funds report as expenditures funds disbursed for long-term 
loans, but in the statement of activities such payments are not 
recorded as expenses but instead are recorded as assets in the statement of net assets 

Interest earned on long-term receivables, payable at maturity, are not current financial 
resoruces and are deferred in the funds 

Long-term receivables are deferred in the funds until collected and 
available for use. In the statement of activiities, no revenues are 
recognized from the collection of receivables 

Net differences 

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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$ (1,798,329) 

2,661,193 

280,000 

(20,215) 

2,563 

10,423 

3,109 

59,923 

205,415 

(178,009) 

3,024,402 

$ 1,226,073 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 

June 30,2011 

Enterpnse Funds 

Nonmajor 
Water Wastewater Transit Fund Totals 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,319,555 $ 5,325,166 $ 76,997 $ 8,721,718 
Receivables{net) 240,873 328,957 569,830 
Inventory 77,199 77,199 
Prepayments 30,432 6,653 37,085 

Total current assets 3,637,627 5,684,555 83,650 9,405,832 

Noncurrent assets: 
Other assets: 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,419,790 4,317,492 12,737,282 
Bond issuance costs, net 221,824 307,234 529,058 

Total other noncurrent assets 8,641,614 4,624,726 13,266,340 
Capital assets: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 26,996 126,695 153,691 
Construction in progress 1,482,019 619,528 2,101,547 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,509,015 746,223 2,255,238 
Capital assets being depreciated 

Collection system 7,498,839 7,498,839 
Pumping system 926,318 926,318 
Treatment plant 22,778,392 22,778,392 
Distribution and treatment system 10,655,543 10,655,543 
Equipment 505,589 618,184 1,123,773 
Vehicles 303,159 445,318 145,548 894,025 

Less accumulated depreciation (4,282,862~ (8,537,951~ (135,195~ (12,956,008~ 

Total capital assets being depreciated 7,181,429 23,729,100 10,353 30,920,882 

Total noncurrent assets 17,332,058 29,100,049 10,353 46,442,460 

Total assets $ 20,969,685 $ 34,784,604 $ 94,003 $ 55,848,292 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 153,645 $ 114,414 $ 847 $ 268,906 
Compensated absences 2,682 2,849 518 6,049 
Other current liabilities 26,578 39,005 3,013 68,596 
Deposits 64,735 64,735 
Interest 90,444 147,506 237,950 
Unearned revenues 26,524 26,524 
Bonds and Notes due within one year 170,000 280,000 450,000 

Total current liabilities 508,084 583,774 30,902 1,122,760 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 7,683 8,160 1,483 17,326 
Revenue bonds and notes 7,710,000 12,575,000 20,285,000 
Premium from sale of bonds, net 210,877 354,917 565,794 

Total noncurrent liabilities 7,928,560 12,938,077 1,483 20,868,120 

Total liabilities 8,436,644 13,521,851 32,385 21,990,880 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8,394,902 13,585,584 10,353 21,990,839 
Restricted 846,279 2,305,551 3,151,830 
Unrestricted 3,291,860 5,371,618 51,265 8,714,743 

Total net assets $ 12,533,041 $ 21,262,753 $ 61,618 $ 33,857,412 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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CITY OF FORTUNA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Enterprise Funds 

Water 
OPERATING REVENUES 
Sales of water $ 2,196,573 
Service fees 
Miscellaneous 82,192 

Total operating revenues 2,278,765 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Employee services 602,184 
Contract services 
Purchased power 151,037 
Supplies and materials 441,898 
Depreciation and amortization 283,482 

Total operating expenses 1,478,601 

Operating income (loss) 800,164 

NON-OPERA TING 
REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Operating subsidies 
Interest and investment revenue 34,772 

Net nonoperating revenues 
(expenses) 34,772 

Income (loss) before contributions 
and transfers 834,936 

Contributions and transfers: 
Capital contributions 19,486 
Transfers out (4,135) 

Net contributions and transfers 15,351 

Change in net assets 850,287 

Total net assets, July 1 11,682,754 

Total net assets, June 30 $ 12,533,041 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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Nonmajor 
Wastewater Transit Fund 

$ $ 
3,512,445 11,189 

56,720 

3,569,165 11,189 

743,536 74,341 
84,085 

211,246 
761,734 16,451 
733,388 6,902 

2,449,904 181,779 

1,119,261 (170,590~ 

163,688 
33,196 15 

33,196 163,703 

1,152,457 ~6,887) 

200,620 6,600 
~5,168) 

195,452 6,600 

1,347,909 (287) 

19,914,844 61,905 

$ 21,262,753 $ 61,618 

Totals 

$ 2,196,573 
3,523,634 

138,912 

5,859,119 

1,420,061 
84,085 

362,283 
1,220,083 
1,023,772 

4,110,284 

1,748,835 

163,688 
67,983 

231,671 

1,980,506 

226,706 
(9,303) 

217,403 

2,197,909 

31,659,503 

$ 33,857,412 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Entererise Funds 

Nonmajor 
Transit 

Water Wastewater Fund Totals 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers $ 2,191,711 $ 3,512,514 $ 11,189 $ 5,715,414 
Payments to suppliers (463,182) (951,479) (100,107) (1,514,768) 
Payments to employees for services (602,402) (733,898) (77,510) (1,413,810) 
Other operating receipts 82,192 56,720 138,912 

Net cash provided by (used for) 
operating activities 1,208,319 1,883,857 (166,4282 2,925,748 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAl 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Operating subsidies 190,212 190,212 
Transfers to other funds {4,135} (5, 1682 (9,303) 

Net cash provided by noncapital (4,135) (5,168) 190,212 180,909 
financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Capital contributions 19,486 79,665 6,600 105,751 
Payments on long-term debt principal (135,000) (270,000) (405,000) 
Interest paid on long-term debt (364,051) (594,579) (958,630) 
Purchases of capital assets (422,378) P53,9072 {6,653} (782,938) 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and 
related financing activities (901,943} (1,138,821} {53} {2,040,817) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest receipts 43,754 35,582 15 79,351 

Net cash provided by investing activities 43,754 35,582 15 79,351 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents 345,995 775,450 23,746 1,145,191 

Balances-beginning of the year 11,393,350 8,867,208 53,251 20.313,809 

Balances-end of the year $ 11,739,345 $ 9,642,658 $ 76,997 $ 21,459,000 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 

Change in assets and liabilities: 
Decrease(increase) in accounts receivable 
Decrease(increase) in inventory 
Decrease(increase) in prepayments 
Increase(decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase(decrease) in other liabilities 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30,2011 

Enterprise Funds 

Water 

$ 800,164 

283,482 

(7,618) 
34,467 

95,286 
2,538 

Wastewater 

$ 1,119,261 

733,388 

69 

(7,702) 
29,198 

9,643 

Nonmajor 
Transit Fund 

$ (170,590) 

6,902 

429 
(3,169) 

Totals 

$ 1,748,835 

1,023,772 

(7,549) 
34,467 
(7,702) 

124,913 
9,012 

Net cash provided by (used for) 
operating activities $ 1,208,319 $ 1,883,857 $ (166,428) $ 2,925,748 

Noncash capital financing activities: 
The City reported $120,955 in enterprise capital assets contributed by developers in fiscal 2011. 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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CITY OF FORTUNA 
Statement of 

Funds -----
ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ 
Accounts receivable 895 

Total assets 

liABILITIES 
Accounts $ 

Total liabilities $ 76,750 

See notes to the basic financial statements 
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CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Fortuna is a municipal corporation governed by an elected five-member City Council. 
The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities 
for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. Blended Component Units - The 
Fortuna Redevelopment Agency and Fortuna Public Financing Authority are separate legal 
entities created for the purpose of improving the economic conditions of the City, making public 
improvements and providing financing for these purposes. These entities are governed by the 
City Council of the City of Fortuna, and are therefore reported as if they were part of the City. The 
Agency and the Authority are reported as part of the City's special revenue, capital projects and 
debt service funds. Component unit financial statements may be obtained at the City's offices at 
621 11th Street, Fortuna, California. 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (Le., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the 
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only 
when payment is due. 
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Note 1. 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 

Property taxes, sales taxes, transient occupancy taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the 
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized 
as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable 
and available only when cash is received by the government. 

The government reports the following major governmental funds: 

The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

The Redevelopment Administration special revenue fund accounts for tax increment revenues 
allocated to the Agency. The Agency's Bond Debt Service Fund is used to account for the 
proceeds from the sale of the 2007 revenue bonds and related bond reserve, escrow and debt 
payment funds. The Agency's City Loan Debt Service Fund is used to account for long-term 
loan transactions between the City and its component unit Redevelopment Agency. The 
HOME grant fund is used to account for grants and loans related to multi-family affordable 
housing projects. The Regional Surface Transportation Fund used to account for special street 
related restricted revenues. 

The government reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The water and wastewater funds account for the sewage treatment plant, sewage pumping 
stations and collection systems, and the water distribution system. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, 
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to 
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private­
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same 
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other 
charges between the government's water and wastewater function and various other functions of 
the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program 
revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as 
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the City's water and wastewater enterprise funds are charges to 
the customers for sales and services. The enterprise funds also recognize as operating revenue 
the portion of tap fees, connection fees and impact fees intended to recover the cost of 
connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the 
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 
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Note 1. 

D. 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments 

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. 

State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. TreaSUJ""Yrcommercial-paper, 
corporate bonds, repurchase agreements, the State Treasurer's Investment Pool, the Humboldt 
County Treasurer's Pool and other permitted investments 

Investments for the City are reported at fair value. The State Treasurer's Investment Pool and the 
Humboldt County Treasurer's Pool operate in accordance with appropriate state laws and 
regulations. The reported value in the pools is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. 

2. Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at 
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (Le., the current 
portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (Le., the non-current portion of 
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other 
funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type 
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund 
balance reserve account in applicable government funds to indicate that they are not available for 
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 

All trade and property tax receivables are not shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. 

Expenditures for long-term notes receivable are reported in the fund statements when made; and 
the related receivable is recorded as an asset in the fund statements but is offset by deferred 
revenue accounts until the receivables are realized by the funds. Long-term receivables are 
recorded as assets in the statement of net assets when the transaction is consummated by the 
City and are not offset by deferred revenue accounts. 

Property taxes are levied as of March 1 on property values assessed as of the same date. State 
statutes provide that the property tax rate be limited generally to one percent of market value, be 
levied by only the County, and be shared by applicable jurisdictions. The County of Humboldt 
collects the taxes and distributes them to taxing jurisdictions on the basis of assessed valuations 
subject to voter-approved debt. Property taxes are due on November 1 and March 1, and become 
delinquent on December 10 and April 10. The City receives property taxes pursuant to an 
arrangement with the County known as the "Teeter Plan". Under the plan, the County assumes 
responsibility for the collection of delinquent taxes and pays the full allocation to the City. The City 
recognizes property tax revenues in the fiscal year in which they are due to the City. 

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of 
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

D. and Net Assets or 

4. Assets 

and infrastructure assets , 
,"or,,,,...torl in the applicable or business-

activities columns in the financiai statements. Capital assets are defined 
the as assets with an individual cost of more than $5,000 for and 

vehicles and 0,000 for other assets an estimated useful life in excess of one 
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if or 
constructed. Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of 
donation. Under the GASB 34 the was not to record 
infrastructure assets or 1, and the has not recorded such 
assets. The may elect to record such infrastructure assets in the future. The costs of normal 
maintenance and that do not add to the value of asset or extend assets lives 
are not 

for assets and are as nr .. """,,...,,,, 

Interest incurred during the construction of capital assets of 
included as part of the value of the assets constructed, 

Property, plant, and equipment of the 
foilowing estimated useful lives: 

Assets 
Buildings and 
Public domain infrastructure 
,",,,,, .. ,,,rn infrastructure 
Vehicles and 

is 

25 
20 
15-50 
5 

5. Compensated Absences and Other Post I::.flUJliO'lflrn 

the 

Benefits 

n"",,,,,_,,,,""'" activities is 

line method over the 

It is the to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay 
benefits, There is a of accumulated sick leave since the does 
have a to pay certain amounts when from service with the A!I 
vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the and proprietary fund financiai 
statements. The Sick leave is considered a and it is recorded in 

fund when current financial resources will be 
in the statement of net assets 

financial statements. The 
the Public 

net assets. 
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Note 1. 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

7. Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Fund balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications based primarily on the 
extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints about the speCific purposes for which 
amounts in those funds can be spent. These classifications include (1) nonspendable, (2) 
restricted, (3) committed, (4) assigned and (5) unassigned amounts. 

Nonspendable amounts are generally items not expected to be converted into cash within a short 
period of time such that the cash would to be available to pay reported liabilities of the current 
period. These nonspendable items typically include inventories, prepayments, long-term 
receivables not offset by deferred revenue accounts, and advances by the city to its component 
unit redevelopment agency. Restricted amounts include those where the constraints placed on 
the uses or resources are externally imposed by grantors, contributors, other governments or by 
laws and regulations. Committed amounts are those that can only be used for a specific purpose 
as determined by the City Council. Such committed amounts may be redeployed for other uses 
only by the direction of the City Council. Assigned amounts are fund balance amounts 
constrained by the City's intent to be used for specific purposes as determined by the City's 
Finance Director or City Manager. Assigned amounts can be redeployed for other uses by 
direction of the City Manager or Finance Director. Unassigned fund balance amounts are the 
residual amounts of the general fund only or funds having deficit fund balances. 

When expenditures are incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned 
or unassigned) amounts are available, the city considers restricted amounts to have been spent 
first. When expenditures are incurred for which any class of unrestricted fund balance could be 
used, the City considers committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned 
amounts, and then unassigned amounts. 

2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 
and the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total 
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statements of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that "capital assets are not 
financial resources and are not reported in the funds." The details of this $7,622,303 difference 
are as follows: 

Capital assets $ 12,789,755 

Less: Accumulated depreciation (5,167,452) 

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental 
funds to arrive at net assets - governmental activities ~$===!=7~,6~2~2"",.3~0",,,,3 
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CITY OF FORTUNA. 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

A. Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 
"n1>1lP;r'nn'lP;rU'-\IVI(~1P; Statement of Net .Assets 

Another element of the reconciliation 
in the current and are therefore not 

liabilities" are not due and 
in the funds. The details of this 

difference are as follows: 

Debt 

Revenue series 2007 $ 
Premium from sale 2007 revenue bonds 
Accrued interest 

vacation and sick leave 

Net adjustment to decrease fund balance total 
Funds to arrive at net assets - activities 

Et Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the Govemment~wide 
Statement of Activities 

The fund statement of revenues, and in fund balances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and 

in net assets of activities as reported in the statement 
of activities. One element of that reconciliation that "Governmental funds report 

as However, in the statement of activities the cost of these assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives and expense." The details of 
this $ difference and other of the difference are as follows: 

debt 
nn"_,,,,rrn notes receivable 

Other items 
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CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

A. Budgetary Information 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis of consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles for all governmental funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. On or 
before the end of each fiscal year, all agencies of the City submit requests for appropriations to 
the City Manager so that a budget may be prepared. By May 15 of each year, the proposed 
budget is presented to the council for review. The council holds public hearings and a final 
budget must be prepared and adopted no later than June 30. 

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The City's department 
heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations 
between departments require the approval of the City Manager. The legal level of budgetary 
control (Le., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the fund 
level. The council made no supplemental budgetary appropriations during the fiscal year. 
Encumbrance accounting is not employed in governmental funds. 

B. Budgetary Stewardship 

Expenditures budgets (excluding transfers) were exceeded by the Regional Surface 
Transportation fund ($437,066).These excess expenditures were funded from available 
resources. 

The redevelopment agency city debt service fund had a $5,497,635 fund deficit. The Agency's 
debt service fund deficit exists because of advances from other City funds for redevelopment 
purposes. Elimination of this deficit is dependent upon the dissolution of component unit 
redevelopment agency. 

4. Detailed Notes on All Funds 

A. Deposits and Investments 

Deposits and investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2011: 

Demand deposits and savings 
Investments 

$ 3,179,909 
41,827,668 

Total $ 45.007.577 

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, 
the City's deposits may not be returned to it. The City's policy for depOSits is that they will be 
made in institutions in California, and that they shall be insured or fully collateralized with 
government securities. At June 30, 2011, $3,117,429 of the City's bank balances of $3,167,429 
was exposed to credit risk as follows: 

Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank's agent 
But not in the City's name: 
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CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

4. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

A. Deposits and Investments(Continued) 

As of June 30, 2011, the City had the following investments: 

Type Investment 

Local Agency Investment Fund 
JP Morgan Institutional Prime Money Market 
Humboldt County Treasurer's Pool 

Total Investments 

Average Weighted 
Maturity 

237 Days 
48 Days 

928 Days 

Fair Value 

$ 17,636,499 
19,289,720 
4,901,449 

$ 41,827,668 

Interest Rate Risk- As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest 
rates, the City has a formal policy which limits City purchased investments to securities having a 
remaining maturity date from time of purchases to five years or less. 

Credit Risk- The City's investment policy limits investments in mutual and money market funds to the 
top two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical ratings organizations. Investments in 
obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government are not considered to have credit risk and 
do not require the disclosure of credit quality. The Local Agency Investment Fund and Humboldt 
County Treasurer's Investment Pool are unrated. The JP Morgan Money Markey Fund was rated 
AAA. 

Concentration of Credit Risk- Investments explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and 
investments in mutual funds, and external investment pools such as those held by the City are 
excluded from concentration of credit risk disclosures. 

Custodial Credit Risk- For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or the 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investments in mutual funds and 
external investment pools are not subject to custodial credit risk because these investments are not 
evidenced by specific securities. 
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CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

4. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

B. Receivables 

Receivables as of year-end for the government's individual major and nonmajor funds in the 
aggregate, net of the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

Redevelopment 
Admin, HOME 
Grant and 
Regional Surface Nonmajor Total Water Wastewater 

General Fund Transeortation Funds Governmental Ente!Erise Ente!Erise 

Receivables: 
Taxes $ 431,817 $ 810,059 $ 289,802 $ 1,531,678 $ - $ 

Accounts 66,824 1,300 16,491 84,615 240,873 
Governments 150,822 291,515 99,370 541,707 

Interest 38,275 38,275 

Subtotal current 687,738 1,102,874 405,663 2,196,275 240,873 
Leases 1,312,335 1,312,335 
Notes receivable 1,320 7,915,495 2,149,778 10,066,593 

Net total receivables $ 689,059 $ 9,018,369 $ 3,867,776 $ 13,575,203 $ 240,873 $ 

Revenues of the water and wastewater enterprises are reported net of uncollectible amounts. Total 
uncollectible amounts related to revenues of the current period are not material at year-end. 

Long-term notes receivable of $10,066,593 consists of two notes relating to affordable housing 
projects for $7,915,495 (with accumulated and unpaid interest) and various other notes for 
$2,151,098 relating to business development and redevelopment projects. The notes for $7,915,495 
bear interest at 3 percent per annum, mature in 55 years, and are repayable annually to the extent 
that the housing projects have residual receipts with the unpaid balance due at maturity. The notes 
are secured by a deed of trust on the housing projects. The other notes are generally repayable in 
monthly installments of principal and interest at various rates and terms. The other notes of 
$2,151,098 consists of one note for $500,000, bearing interest at 4 percent, maturing in 1 ° years 
and repayable in monthly installments of $3,000. 

The lease receivable of $1,312,335 represents the net present value of lease rents receivable under 
an agreement with the State of California pursuant to a sublease arrangement of the California 
Conservation Corps Facility. The lease expires June 30, 2018. Upon expiration, the facility passes to 
the State of California. The lease payments are due in annual installments of $245,000. 
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CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

4. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

C. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Increases 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 1,047,371 $ 
Construction in progress 210,870 1,374,491 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,258,241 1,374,491 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 3,610,831 115,582 
Improvements 1,297,381 176,025 
Equipment 1,401,726 15,116 
Vehicles 715,942 41,875 
Infrastructure - primarily street systems 2,007,314 1,541,583 

Total capital assets being depreciated 9,033,194 1,890,181 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings (1,806,800) (130,294) 
Improvements (689,505) (43,058) 
Equipment (1,163,501) (89,604) 
Vehicles (479,837) (79,400) 
Infrastructure (597,600) (152,297) 

Total accumulated depreciation (4,737,243) (494,653) 

Total capital assets, being depreCiated, net 4,295,951 1,395,528 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 5,554,192 $ 2,770,019 
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Ending 
Decreases Balance 

$ - $ 1,047,371 
(108,824) 1,476,537 

(108,824) 2,523,908 

3,726,413 
1,473,406 

(14,871) 1,401,971 
(49,568) 708,249 

3,548,897 

(64,442) 10,858,933 

(1,937,094) 
(732,563) 

14,874 (1,238.231 ) 
49,568 (509,669) 

(749,897) 

64,442 (5,167,454) 

5,691,479 

$ p08,824} $ 8,215,387 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

4. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

C. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases Ending Balance 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 153,691 $ $ $ 153,691 
Construction in progress 3,983,832 977,110 {2,852,742) 2,108,200 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 4,137,523 977,110 {2,852,742) 2,261,891 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Wastewater collection system 7,256,959 241,880 7,498,839 

Wastewater pumping 926,318 926,318 

Wastewater treatment plant 21,295,517 1,482,875 22,778,392 

Water treatment and distribution 8,740,440 1,915,103 10,655,543 

Equipment 1,053,411 70,362 1,123,773 
Vehicles 880,881 13,144 894,025 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 40,153,526 3,723,364 43,876,890 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Wastewater system (7,802,711 ) (735,240) (8,537,951) 
Water system (3,999,807) (283,055) (4,282,862) 
Transit system (128,293) (6,902) (139,195) 

Total accumulated depreciation (11,930,811) (1,025,197) (12,956,008) 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 28,222,715 2,698,167 30,920,882 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $32,360,238 $3,675,277 $ {2,852, 742) $33,182,773 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safety 
Streets 
Parks and recreation 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 

Business-Type Activities: 

Wastewater 
Water 
Transit 

Total depreciation expense-business-type activities 
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Amounts 

$ 145,714 
75,644 

199,356 
73,939 

$ 494,653 

$ 735,240 
283,055 

6,902 

$ 1,025,197 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

4. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

1. The composition of interfund balances of June 30, 2011, is as follows: 

Receivable Fund 

Loan to Redevelopment Agency: 

General Fund 
Drainage Facility 

Payable Fund 

Redevelopment City Debt Service 
Redevelopment City Debt Service 

Total loan to redevelopment agency 

Amount 

$ 4,637,050 
860,585 

$ 5,497,635 

The due from other funds represents primarily cash flow advances made by the City's general fund 
to other funds in order to conduct operations and projects pending reimbursement and payments of 
entitlements by grantor agencies and other governments. The $5,497,635 in advances represents 
amounts loaned to the City's Redevelopment Agency to commence operations and startup projects. 
The loan is repayable in annual installments of about $773,949 from Agency tax increment revenues 
commencing in fiscal year 2010 and concluding in 2024 using an interest rate of 10 percent as of 
June 30, 2010. 
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June 30, 2011 
4. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers(Continued) 

2. Interfund transfers at June 30, 2011 were as follows: 

Transfers out: 

Redevelopment 
administration 

General fund 
Lease fund 
Waterlwastewater 
All Other Funds 

Totals 

Transfer in: 

Redevelopment 
Agency Bond 
Debt Service 

$ 517,942 

193 

$518,135 

Redevelopment 
Low & Moderate 
Income Housing 

$ 281,711 

$ 281,711 

City Loan 
Debt Service 

$ 773,949 

$ 773,949 

All 
Other 
Funds 

$ 1,292 
324,211 
140,289 

9,303 
1,324,920 

$1,800,015 

Total 
Transfers Out 
All Funds 

$ 1,574,894 
324,211 
140,289 

9,303 
1,325,113 

$3,373,810 

Interfund transfers were made primarily to transfer tax increment revenues to the low and moderate 
income housing fund of the City's redevelopment agency and to transfers funds to pay debt service 
on the City and Agency's long-term debt obligations. Of the $1,241,436 of transfers out of the 
non major funds, $1,200,000 was a transfer out of the 2007 bond proceeds account to the City's 
general fund for the cost of land for a new police facility. 

E. Long-Term Debt 

Water Revenue Bonds 

During the 2007 fiscal year, the City's Public Financing Authority issued $8,085,000 in water revenue 
bonds, series 2006 for the purpose of providing long-term financing for the water treatment plant 
project of the City. The Fortuna Public Financing Authority entered into an installment sale 
agreement with the City whereby the City agreed to pay the debt service on the bonds in exchange 
for the financing. The installment sale agreement between the City and its Public Financing Authority 
have been eliminated from these financial statements. The revenue bonds bear interest at rates from 
3.375% to 5.0%, are payable each April 1 and October 1 through 2037. The bonds are secured by a 
pledge of the water system net revenues. Future debts service on the bonds is: 

Fiscal Years Princi~al Interest Total 
2012 $ 170,000 $ 358,797 $ 528,797 
2013 175,000 352,760 527,760 
2014 185,000 345,998 530,998 
2015 190,000 337,547 527,547 
2016 200,000 328,797 528,797 

2017-2021 1,135,000 1,504,440 2,639,440 
2022-2026 1,385,000 1,248,179 2,633,179 
2027-2031 1,725,000 901,444 2,626,444 
2032-2036 2,205,000 413,625 2,618,625 

2037 510,000 12,750 522,750 

$ 7,880,000 $ 5,804,337 $ 13,684,337 
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4. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

E. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 54 percent of 
system net revenues as defined. Total interest and principal remaining to be paid is $13,684,337. 
Principal and interest paid for the current fiscal year and total system net revenues as defined were 
$499,050 and $1,133,769, respectively. 

Wastewater Revenue Bonds 

During the 2007 fiscal year, the City's Public Financing Authority issued $13,820,000 in wastewater 
revenue bonds, series 2006 for the purpose of providing long-term financing for the wastewater 
treatment plant project of the City. The Fortuna Public Financing Authority entered into an 
installment sale agreement with the City whereby the City agreed to pay the debt service on the 
bonds in exchange for the financing. The installment sale agreement between the City and its Public 
Financing Authority have been eliminated from these financial statements. The revenue bonds bear 
interest at rates from 3.25% to 5.0%, are payable each April 1 and October 1 through 2037. Future 
debts service on the bonds is: 

Fiscal Years Princieal Interest Total 
2012 $ 280,000 $ 585,122 $ 865,122 
2013 290,000 575,147 865,147 
2014 300,000 564,072 864,072 
2015 310,000 550,322 860,322 
2016 325,000 536,072 861,072 

2017-2021 1,850,000 2,453,560 4,303,560 
2022-2026 2,270,000 2,033,624 4,303,624 
2027-2031 2,815,000 1,467,463 4,282,463 
2032-2036 3,585,000 673,125 4,258,125 

2037 830,000 20,750 850,750 

$ 12,855,000 $ 9,459,257 $ 22,314,257 

The bonds are secured by a pledge of the wastewater system net revenues. Annual principal and 
interest payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 51 percent of system net revenues 
as defined. Total interest and principal remaining to be paid on the bonds is $22,314,257. Principal 
and interest paid for the current fiscal year and total system net revenues as defined were $864,578 
and $1,655,977, respectively. 

2007 Revenue Bonds - Governmental Activities 

The City and its component unit redevelopment agency entered into a loan agreement with the 
Fortuna Public Financing Authority (also a component unit of the City), dated October 1, 2007, 
wherein the Authority sold $17,500,000 in its revenue bonds, series 2007. From the sale of the 
Authority's Revenue bonds, $13,280,000 was loaned to the component unit redevelopment agency 
and $4, 220,000 was loaned to the City. The loans receivable and payable between the City and the 
City's redevelopment agency and the City's component unit Financing Authority have been 
eliminated from the accompanying financial statements. 
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June 30, 2011 

4. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

E. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

From the bond proceeds, the redevelopment agency deposited $2,525,000 into an Escrowed Project 
Fund Account until October 15, 2010, of the escrow bonds which bonds are defined as the bonds 
maturing November 1,2038 with an interest rate of 4.9 percent. On October 15, 2010 the Trustee 
shall transfer all amounts then on deposit in the Escrowed Project Fund to the Principal Fund, to be 
applied to the mandatory redemption on November 1, 2010 of Escrow Bonds pursuant to Section 
4.07 of the Trust Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Agency may postpone such 
redemption to any later date identified in a certificate of the Agency which sets forth the new date for 
the transfer of amounts in the Escrowed Project Fund to the Principal Fund to be used to redeem 
Escrow Bonds pursuant to Section 4.07 of the Trust Agreement and which is accompanied by cash 
in an amount which is certified by the Agency as sufficient, together with the earnings thereon, to 
pay interest on the portion of the Escrow Bonds which represent the funds then on deposit in the 
Escrowed Project Fund from November 1, 2010 to the redemption date as identified in such 
certificate of the Agency. The Agency exercised its option to postpone this redemption until 
November 1, 2011. At June 30, 2011, there was $2,525,000 on deposit in the escrow account. 

The 2007 revenue bonds mature each November 1 commencing November 1, 2008 through 2038, 
bear interest at rates from 3.75 to 5.0 percent and consist of $5,365,000 in serial bonds, $4,110,000 
in term bonds due November 2031, $2,525,000 in term bonds due November 1, 2038 (the escrow 
bonds), and $5,500,000 in term bonds due November 1, 2038. The bonds are subject to early 
redemptions from certain prepayments, bonds maturing on or after November 1, 2018 are subject to 
optional early redemption, the escrow bonds are subject to mandatory early redemption on 
November 1, 2010 and the term bonds maturing November 1, 2031 and 2038 are subject to 
mandatory sinking fund redemptions on or after November 1, 2024 and 2032, respectively. 

2007 Revenue Bonds - Governmental Activities 

Fiscal Years Princi~al 
2012 $ 305,000 
2013 320,000 
2014 350,000 
2015 385,000 
2016 410,000 

2017-2021 1,905,000 
2022-2026 2,260,000 
2027-2031 3,255,000 
2032-2036 4,440,000 
2037-2039 3,080,000 

$ 16,710,000 

Interest 
$ 777,406 

764,405 
750,980 
736,683 
721,138 

3,322,989 
2,895,426 
2,263,173 
1,340,413 

227,384 

$ 13,799,997 

Total 
$ 1,082,406 

1,084,405 
1,100,980 
1,121,683 
1,131,138 
5,227,989 
5,155,426 
5,518,173 
5,780,413 
3,307,384 

$ 30,509,997 

The City's component unit redevelopment agency has pledged future incremental property tax 
revenues to repay its $13,060,000 share of the 2007 revenue bonds. The agency's share of the 
revenue bonds is payable solely from the pledged tax increment revenues and from certain trust 
accounts held by the bond trustee. Total principal and interest remaining on the agency's share of 
the bonds is $24,831,165. For the current fiscal year, principal and interest paid by the agency and 
total tax increment revenues were $701,824 and $1,126,845, respectively. 

The City has not pledged a specific revenue source as security to repay its $3,650,000 share of the 
2007 revenue bonds, although it has agreed to appropriate monies to make such scheduled debt 
service payments. 
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4. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

E. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Changes in Long-term liabilities 

Long-term debt activity for the 2011 fiscal year was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balances Additions Reductions 

Govemmental-Type 

2007 Revenue bonds $ 16,990,000 $ $ 280,000 
Compensated absences 169,676 3,109 

Totals $17,159,676 $ $ 283,109 

Business-Type 

Revenue bonds $21,140,000 $ $ 405,000 

Totals $ 21,140,000 $ $ 405,000 

5. Other Information 

A. Risk Management 

Ending Due In One 
Balances Year 

$ 16,710,000 $ 305,000 
166,567 

$16,876,567 $ 305,000 

$20,735,000 $ 450,000 

$ 20,735,000 $ 450,000 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries insurance. 

The City is a member of the Redwood Empire Municipal Insurance Fund a joint powers authority, 
which provides joint protection programs for public entities covering automobile, general liability, 
errors and omission losses, property and workers compensation claims. Under the program, the City 
has a $ 10,000 general liability retention limit similar to a deductible with the Fund being responsible 
for losses above that amount up to $ 500,000. The Fund carries excess liability coverage to a total of 
$40 million in excess of its $ 500,000 retention limit per occurrence through the California Joint 
Powers Risk Management Authority and its excess insurers. 

The Fund covers workers compensation claims up to its self-insurance limit of $ 1 million. A 
purchased excess policy insures the Fund for an additional $ 1 million to provide aggregate 
coverage of up to $ 2 million per claim. The City pays an annual premium to the Fund; the City may 
share in any surplus revenues or may be required to pay additional assessments based upon the 
Fund's operating results. The Fund also provides property coverage up to $300 million per 
occurrence. 

The City paid no material uninsured losses during the 2009-2010 fiscal year. Financial statements of 
the JPA Fund may be obtained from their administrative offices located at 414 W. Napa Street, 
Sonoma, California 95476. 

Liabilities of the City are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the 
loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred 
but not reported (IBNRs). The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact 
amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and 
damage awards. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation, 
recent claim settlement trends (including frequency and amount of pay-outs), and other economic 
and social factors. 
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A. Risk Management (Continued) 

The estimate of the claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment 
expenses related to specific claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether 
allocated to specific claims. Estimated recoveries, for example from salvage or subrogation, are 
another component of the claims liability estimate. Settlements have not exceeded coverage for 
each of the past three fiscal years. 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows: 

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year 

Incurred claims (including IBNRs) 
Claim payments 

Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year 

B. Contingencies and Commitments 

Year 
Ended 

6/30/2011 

$ 30,730 

1,424 
(8,778) 

$ 23,376 

Year 
Ended 

6/30/2010 

$ 25,274 

13,277 
(7,771) 

$ 30,730 

Litigation. The City is involved in litigation incurred in the normal course of conducting City 
business. City management believes that, based upon consultation with its counsel, these 
cases, in the aggregate, are not expected to result in a material adverse financial impact on the 
City. 

C. Jointly Governed Organizations 

Jointly governed organizations are legal entities or other organizations that result from a 
contractual arrangement and that are owned, operated, or governed by two or more partiCipants 
as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the partiCipants retain an 
ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. The City is a participant in the 
following organizations: 

Redwood Empire Municipal Insurance Fund. The City is a member of Insurance Fund. The 
Fund, under the terms of a Joint Powers Agreement with the City and several other cities and 
governmental agencies, provides insurance coverage for general liability, automobile liability, 
and workers compensation claims. 

Under the arrangement, the Fund purchases liability, automobile liability, and workers 
compensation insurance and charges participating cities and governmental agencies in amounts 
planned to match expenses of insurance premiums, estimated payments resulting from self­
insurance programs, and operating expenses. The City's obligations are limited to contributions 
to pay for related insurance premiums. 
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D. Other Post-Employment Benefits 

The City provides no post-employment benefits other than those associated with the Public 
Employees Retirement System. 

E. Public Employees Retirement System 

Plan Description. The City of Fortuna contributes to the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS), a cost sharing multiple-employer, public employee, defined benefit 
pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living 
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common 
investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. 
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by the State statute and City 
ordinance. The PERS issues publicly available financial reports that includes the financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the PERS. Copies of PERS annual 
financial report may be obtained from their executive office, 400 uP" Street, Sacramento, 
California 95814. 

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost. The contribution requirements of plan members and 
the City are established by and may be amended by PERS. Regular plan members are required 
to contribute 7.0 percent of their annual covered salary and safety members are required to 
contribute 9.0 percent. The city is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The 
current rate for regular employees is 12.66 percent of covered payroll and is 20.515 percent for 
safety personnel. The City's annual pension cost for the most recent year and related 
information for each plan is as follows 

Three-year Trend of Information 

Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension 
Plan Year Ending Cost APC Contributed Obligation 

Regular employees 6/30109 $ 297,333 100% $ 
6/30/10 $ 302,039 100% $ 
6/30/11 $ 304,819 100% $ 

Safety employees 6/30109 $ 152,655 100% $ 
6/30/10 $ 169,244 100% $ 
6/30/11 $ 199,211 100% $ 
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F. Restricted Net Assets and Nonspendable Fund Balances 

Restricted Net Assets 

The $ 27,247,512 restricted amount for debt service, affordable housing, redevelopment, streets and 
other in the governmental activities statement of net assets represent amounts to be used only for 
specific purposes which restrictions are imposed by laws, formal agreements or other governments 
and primarily relate to redevelopment funds restricted by law to only certain specified uses. The 
$3,151,828 restricted for business-type activities represents spendable net assets in the wastewater 
and water funds restricted for use in making capital improvements and debt service. 

Nonspendable Fund Balances 

The nonspendable fund balances in the governmental fund types represent amounts not available 
for immediate use to pay current liabilities and consists of: 

Nonspendable Amounts General Fund Nonmajor Funds 

Inventory $ 11,436 $ 
Prepayments 30,548 
Advances to other funds 4,637,050 860,585 
Land held for resale 593,084 

Totals $ 4,679,034 $ 1,453,669 

G. Proposition 1 A Receivable 

Under the provisions of Proposition 1A and as part of the 2009-2010 budget package passed by the 
California State Legislature on July 28, 2009, the State of California borrowed 8% of the amount of 
property tax revenue, including property taxes associated with the in lieu motor license fee, the triple 
flip in lieu sales tax, and the supplemental property tax apportioned to cities, counties and special 
districts (excluding redevelopment agencies). The state is required to repay this borrowing plus 
interest by June 30, 2013. After repayment of the initial borrowing, the California legislature may 
consider only one additional n borrowing within a ten year period. The amount of the borrowing 
pertaining to the City was $139,506. 

The borrowing by the State of California was recognized as a receivable in the accompanying 
financial statements. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, the borrowed tax revenues are 
not permitted to be recognized as revenue in the governmental fund financial statements until the tax 
revenues are received from the State of California (expected to be fiscal 2012-2013). In the 
government wide financial statements, the tax revenues were recognized in the fiscal year for which 
they levied (fiscal year 2009-2010). 

H. Supplemental Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (SERAF) 

Chapter 21, Statutes of 2009, requires redevelopment agencies to collectively shift $350 million in 
property tax revenues to K-12 schools during the 2010-2011 fiscal year via the SERAF that the 
Chapter created in each County. The amount required to be paid by the City's redevelopment 
agency in fiscal 2011 was $94,613 
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I. Dissolution of the City's Redevelopment Agency as a Financial Reporting Entity and 
Assembly Bills AB 1 X 26 and AB 1 X27. 

AB 1X 26 terminates redevelopment agencies effective October 1, 2011, and replaces them with 
successor agencies that are to be tasked with retiring existing redevelopment agencies debt and 
winding down existing redevelopment projects, AB1X 27 provided that redevelopment agencies may 
be exempted from the termination provisions of AB 26 provided that the agencies choose to 
participate in the voluntary redevelopment program that AB 27 creates. In order to participate in the 
voluntary program, and continue to exist as a redevelopment agency and blended component unit of 
the City of Fortuna, the Agency was to enter into an agreement whereby the Agency would agree to 
transfer a portion of its tax increment revenues to the County starting in fiscal 2012. In order for the 
Agency to continue to participate in the program in future years, the Agency would be required to 
submit additional remittances to the County for deposit into ERAF in future years. 

In connection with this legislation, the California Supreme Court issued an order to show cause why 
relief in a petition of mandate should not be granted. The case involved the validity of recent 
legislation; Assembly Bills 1X 26 and 1X 27 pertaining to dissolving and reenacting with changes the 
statutory framework of redevelopment agencies throughout the State of California. The court allowed 
the first statute to remain in effect in so far as it precluded redevelopment agencies from incurring 
new indebtedness, transferring assets, acquiring real property, entering into contracts, and other 
matters, but it stayed enforcement of both statutes in all other respects. The Court established an 
expedited briefing schedule to facilitate a decision before January 15, 2012, and in late December 
2011, the Court issued its ruling. 

The Court's ruling upheld AB 1x 26 (dissolution of redevelopment agencies), but overturned and 
invalidated AB 1x 27 (allowing redevelopment agencies to continue with voluntary payments to the 
ERAFs). As a result, redevelopment agencies are dissolved effective February 1, 2012. 

The Agency's assets are to be transferred to a Successor Agency. The Successor Agency is to be 
the City or County that originally created the former agency unless an election is made to not be the 
Successor Agency. The Successor Agency is to take control of all redevelopment assets, properties, 
contracts, leases, records, buildings, and equipment and dispose of all assets and properties of the 
former redevelopment agency. 

The Successor Agency is to establish a Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, review the 
Agency's enforceable obligation payment schedule (which schedule includes agency obligations and 
for that matter excludes certain defined obligations), modify the schedule and readopt it if necessary. 
The Successor Agency may only make payments for those obligations identified in the Enforceable 
Obligation Payment Schedule (EOPS) until a recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) is 
approved by regulatory bodies. 

The respective County Auditor-Controller, is required, among other matters, to (1) establish a 
redevelopment obligation retirement fund, (2) establish a property tax trust fund, (3) and periodically 
distribute property taxes to the Successor Agency in an amount equal to the cost of obligations 
specified in the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS), and (4) perform other functions. 

These financial statements do not contain any adjustments that will ultimately be required to be 
made to the City's component unit redevelopment agency as part of the redevelopment dissolution 
process; or to the City's general fund or other funds in so far as the amounts shown in these 
financial statements as advances to other funds ( advances to the redevelopment agency by the 
City). 
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J. Change in Accounting Principle 

The City as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 54, 
entitled, Fund balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, implemented in 
fiscal 2011 the provisions of the standard that requires the classification of governmental fund 
type fund balances into various categories as defined in the Statement. The implementation of 
the standard had no impact on the beginning net assets of the City or on the beginning of year 
fund balances. 
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Required Supplementary Information 
CITY OF FORTUNA 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Variance with Final 
Actual Budget Positive 

Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Fund Balance, July 1 $ 9,684,373 $ 9,684,373 $ 9,684,373 $ 
Resources (inflows): 

Property taxes 340,459 340,459 342,196 1,737 
Sales taxes 1,370,000 1,370,000 1,464,916 94,916 
Other taxes 898,255 898,255 936,263 38,008 
License permits 129,070 129,070 121,116 (7,954) 
Fines and forfeits 75,050 75,050 85,862 10,812 
Interest 678,797 678,797 502,414 (176,383) 
Intergovernmental 1,680,901 1,680,901 1,802,599 121,698 
Charges for services 572,012 572,012 803,882 231,870 
Miscellaneous 63,200 63,200 125,162 61,962 
Transfers in 1,229,844 1,229,844 

Amounts available for 
charges to appropriations 15,4921117 15,492,117 17,098,627 1,606,510 

Charges to appropriations: 
General government: 

City council 24,603 24,603 30,421 (5,818) 
City manager 79,435 79,435 79,147 288 
Finance 100,344 100,344 108,091 (7,747) 
Legal 65,000 65,000 40,526 24,474 
Nondepartmental 101,552 101,552 92,989 8,563 
General building 39,422 39,422 63,175 (23,753) 
Risk management 246,187 246,187 276,470 (30,283) 
Public works administration 30,999 30,999 48,288 (17,289) 
Engineering 46,965 46,965 42,285 4,680 
Planning 70,123 70,123 65,054 5,069 
Tourism 126,341 126,341 120,687 5,654 

Public safety: 
Police 2,100,462 2,100,462 1,945,682 154,780 
Detective 194,163 194,163 182,125 12,038 
Police federal 138,146 138,146 122,400 15,746 
Youth 104,798 104,798 101,219 3,579 
Community oriented policing 98,175 98,175 87,979 10,196 
DUI 13,511 (13,511) 
Office traffic safety 5,159 5,159 42,621 (37,462) 
K9 19,933 19,933 22,788 (2,855) 
Animal control 34,758 34,758 21,530 13,228 
Building inspections 201,011 201,011 175,647 25,364 
Development reviews 205,015 205,015 245,462 (40,447) 

Highways and streets: 
Street maintenance 299,765 299,765 320,763 (20,998) 

Parks and Recreation: 
Recreation programs 298,091 298,091 359,538 (61,447) 
Park maintenance 429,551 429,551 389,254 40,297 
Library 25,918 25,918 23,633 2,285 
Railroad museum 26,148 26,148 18,523 7,625 
Riverlodge operations 274,426 274,426 282,292 (7,866) 

Capital oulays 2,450,833 2,450,833 1,787,959 662,874 
Transfers out 218,297 218,297 324,211 (105,9141 
Total charges to appropriations 8,055,620 8,055,620 7,434,270 621,350 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ 7,436,497 $ 7,436,497 $ 9,664,357 $ 2,227,860 
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CITY OF FORTUNA 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 
Note to RSI 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Note A. Explanation of Difference between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP 
Revenues and expenditures: 

Sources/inflows resources: 
Actual amounts "available for appropriation" from budgetary 

comparison schedule: 
Differences - budget to GAAP: 

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary 
resource but is not a current year revenue for financial reporting 
purposes 

Transfers in from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources 
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes 

Total revenues as reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 

Uses/outflows of resources: 

Actual amounts "total charges to appropriations" from the budgetary 
comparison schedule 

Differences - budget to GAAP: 
Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but 
are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes 

Total expenditures as reported in the statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 
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$ 17,098,627 

(9,684,373) 

(1,229,844) 

$ 6,184,410 

$ 7,434,270 

(324,211 ) 

$ 7,110,059 



Required Supplementary Information 
CITY OF FORTUNA 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Redevelopment Agency Administration Special Revenue Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

Fund Balance, July 1 $ 2,951,818 $ 2,951,818 
Resources (inflows): 
I ncremental property taxes 1,165,205 1,165,205 
Charges for services 1,300 1,300 
Interest 17,490 17,490 

Amounts available for 
charges to appropriations 4,135,813 4,135,813 

Charges to appropriations: 
Community development 162,828 162,828 
SERAF payments 94,524 94,524 
Transfers 1,595,401 1,595,401 

Total charges to appropriations 1,852,753 1,852,753 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ 2,283,060 $ 2,283,060 

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and 
Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures: 

Sources of outflows of resources: 
Actual charges to appropriations from budgetary data above: 
Differences-budget to GAAP: 
Transfers out are a budgetary use but are not condsidered to be 
expenditures for financial reporting purposes 

Total expenditures as reported in the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances 

Sources of inflows of resources: 
Amounts available for charges to appropriations: 
Differences budhet to GAAP: 
Beginning fund balances are a budgetary resources but 
but are not a current year revenue for financial reporting purposes 

Total revenues are reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances 

45 

Actual 
Amounts 

$ 2,951,818 

1,126,845 
1,300 

17,231 

4,097,194 

144,174 
94,613 

1,574,894 

1,813,681 

$ 2,283,513 

$ 1,813,681 

(1,574,894) 

$ 238,787 

$ 4,097,194 

{2,951,818} 

$1,145,376 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 

(38,360) 

(259} 

{38,619) 

18,654 
(89) 

20,507 

39,072 

$ 453 



Required Supplementary Information 
CITY OF FORTUNA 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - HOME Grants Special Revenue Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Actual 
Original Final Amounts 

Fund Balance, July 1 $ 25,030 $ 25,030 $ 25,030 
Resources (inflows): 
Interest 73 73 155 
Miscellaneous - loan repayments 6,700 6,700 12,156 

Amounts available for 
charges to appropriations 31,803 31,803 37,341 

Charges to appropriations: 
Community development: 

Loan administration 

Total charges to appropriations 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ 31,803 $ 31,803 $ 37,341 

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and 
Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures: 

Sources of inflows of resources: 
Actual amounts available for appropriations from budgetary data above: $ 37,341 
Differences-budget to GAAP: 
Beginning fund balances are financial resources for 
budgetary purposes, but are not considered as 
revenues for financial reporting purposes !25,030) 

Total revenues as reported in the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances $ 12,311 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 

82 
5,456 

5,538 

$ 5,538 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
Regional Surface Transportation Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 
Revenues: 

Intergovernmental: 
ARRA street improvement grant $ 960,000 $ 960,000 $ 971,730 
Regional TEA allocation 49,127 49,127 49,785 

Interest 1,500 1,500 2,733 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 1,010,627 1 ,010,627 1,024,248 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Street overlays and maintenance 1,016,000 1,016,000 1,453,066 

Total expenditures 1,016,000 1,016,000 1,453,066 

Excess( deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (5,373) !5,373) !428,818) 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers in 

Net change in fund balances (5,373) (5,373) (428,818) 

Fund balance, July 1 632,188 632,188 632,188 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 626,815 $ 626,815 $ 203,370 
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Variance With Final 
Budget 

Positive(Negative) 

$ 11,730 
658 

1,233 

13,621 

!437,066) 

{437,066l 

(423,445) 

(423,445) 

$ {423,445~ 



OPTIONAL SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NONIIIIAJOR FUNDS' COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 
AND REDEVELOPMENT MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS BUDGET TO ACTUAL SCHEDULES 



Assets 
Cash and investments 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Intergovemmental 
Taxes receivable 
Notes receivable, long-term 

Due from other funds 
Advances to other funds 
Lease receivable 

Land held for resale 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted for redevelopment 
Restricted for revolving loan programs 
Restricted for capital projects 
Restricted for CCC faciHty 
Restricted for streets 
Restricted for business development 
Restricted for debt service 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

TotalliabiiRies and fund balances 

I 

Integrated Storm Drain Drainage 
Waste Maintenance Facility 

$ 617 $ 107,882 $ 736,261 

4,418 

860,585 

$ 617 $ 112,300 $1,596,846 

$ 31 $ 1,739 $ 3,102 
586 1,135 25,000 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2011 

SE!ecial Revenue Funds 

Transportation Gas Tax Gas Tax Business 
Fund SB325 2105 2107.5 Improvement 

$ 1,070,084 $ 52,351 $ 1,777 $ 369 

60,963 35,407 3,000 

31,799 

$ 1,162,846 $ 87,758 $ 4,777 $ 369 

$ 1,679 $ 4,346 $ $ 
350 3,510 36 

31,799 

617 2,874 28,102 ~828 7,856 36 

860,585 

109,426 708,159 1,129,018 79,902 4,741 
369 

--------- --- .. -~~-- -- ---------------

109,426 1,568,744 1,129,018 79,902 4,741 369 

$ 617 $ 112,300 $1,596,846 $ 1,162,846 $ 87,758 $ 4,777 $ 369 
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Low and Unrestricted 
Moderate Housing Business 
Income Revolving Revolving Economic CDBG 
Housing Loan Loan Development Business 

$2,591,951 $ 377,503 $ 436,789 $ 3,347,488 $ 368,063 

3,000 

289,802 
258,903 1,198,878 486,414 8,469 

593,084 

$3,733,740 $1,576,381 $ 926,203 $ 3,347,488 $ 376,532 

$ 1,313 $ 463 $ $ $ 

258,903 1,198,878 486,414 8,469 

260,216 1,199,341 486,414 8,469 

593,084 
2,880,440 3,347,488 

377,040 439,789 368.063 

3,473,524 377,040 439,789 3,347,488 368,063 

$3,733,740 $1,576,381 $ 926,203 $ 3,347,488 $ 376,532 



I S~ecial Revenue Funds 

CDBG Parking In CDBGOpen 
Unrestricted Lieu Grant 

Assets 
Cash and investments $ 238,532 $ 87 $ 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Intergovernmental 
Taxes 
Notes receivable, long-term 165,315 
Due from other funds 
Advances to other funds 

Lease receivable 
Land held for resale 

Total assets $ 403,847 $ 87 $ 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ $ $ 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 165d!E... 

Total liabilities 165,315 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted for redevelopment 
Restricted for revolving loan programs 238,532 
Restricted for capital projects 
Restricted for CCC facility 
Restricted for streets 
Restricted for business development 
Restricted for debt service 
Unassigned 87 

Total fund balances 238,532 87 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 403,847 $ 87 $ 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Combining Balance Sheet 

NonmaJor Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2011 

Debt Service Funds 

Lease CHy 2007 
Payment and City Hall COP Bond Debt 

Reserve Debt Service Service 

$ 467,502 $ $ 2,104 

1,312,335 

$ 1,779,837 $ $ 2,104 

$ $ $ 

1,312,335 

1,312,335 

2,104 
467,502 

467,502 2,104 

$ 1,779,837 $ $ 2,104 
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Ca~ital Projects Funds 
Totals 

2007 Bond 2007 Bond 
Public CapHal Capital Projects 

Infrastructure Projects City Redevelopment CCC Project 2011 

$ 7,230 $ 799,807 $ 1,606,707 $ (1,297) $ 12,211,807 

9,073 16,491 
99,370 

289,802 
2,149,778 

860,585 
1,312,335 

593,084 

$ 7,230 $ 799,807 $ 1,606,707 $ 7,776 $ 17,533,252 

$ 7,230 $ $ $ $ 19,903 
30,617 

3,462,113 

7,230 3,512,633 

1,453,669 
1,606,707 7,834,635 

1,423,424 
799,807 799,807 

7,776 7,776 
2,031,246 

369 
2,104 

467,589 

799,807 1,606,707 7,776 14,020,619 

$ 7,230 $ 799,807 $ 1,606,707 $ 7,776 $ 17,533,252 



Revenues: 
Intergovernmental 
Cnarges for services 
Special assessments 
Interest 
Miscell<lneous 

r ot81 revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current 

Highways and streets 
Economic development 
Redevelopment and housing 
Sanitation and recycling 

Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 
:nterest 

Total expenditures 

Excess (defIciency) of 

Integrated 
\/Vaste 

1'1.351 

CiTY OF FORTUNA 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Govemmenetal Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Low and Unrestricted 
Mcderate HOllsing Business 

Storm Drain Drainage Transportation Gas Tax Gas Tax Business Income Revolving Revovling Economic CDSG 

. .I~inte~~ __ . Fac~l!t_ Fund S8325 __ ~~~._ ~~_ .lmpro~! ~~i!2~. _ _ . Loan _ .... ___ ~oa;:! ___ Developme.!:J.l __ Bus~e,~~~_. 

$ $ 161,969 $ 299,857 $ 3,000 $ $ $ $ 
42,73:l 3.687 

50,853 
499 92,256 5,884 8 74 13.988 1,966 1,96:; 16,202 '1.815 

____ 521 __ ~.2.. _____________ 5_,~Q? _________ .. ____________ . ______ ~£43 _ 33,QQ.Q.._. _____ ___ lU.~L 

.~c~3, ___ 48,792_._ 95.943 __ ~.262..._~9,85L ____ 3,008 50,927 __ 1",3",,9;,;813 . __ 4,009. ____ 34,963 ____ .~.2.:?'- . ____ ... El.,.§!£'!, .. 

42,955 58A'~'l 84,162 215,287 921 
50,866 

22122 83,000 
24,838 

5,786 61,123 5,607 

20,000 
155,456 ----- ----- ~-.. ---- ._· ____ N ______ ._. _________ , __ _ 

_._ ... 2491.t? ___ 42,955. __ 64,197 .. __ .. _J.15,2eo_ ,,--.?20,894 . ___ 921_. __ .liD,86.§.., __ '197,576. 83.000 

revenues over expenditures __ .,._J:S.9~E!l. ____ !?"'~z...._..2.~~. __ ~ _ _ , .. _Z§~ _,._.";;;,0l!!:_ • ___ .~ __ ~~Ql,~,99Jl .. _._~.cfl.~ __ ._._,_~?.QL. ___ ~c§l98 

Other Financing Sources 
(Uses) 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

balances, July" 

Fund balances, June 

105.863 

~--.---.~- ,_. __ ._._--- -.----~~--, -~-----~~ ~.~---. -------- ---.---

10~86;L _., __________ .~ ____ ~~-__ . ___ . __ 

103,"197 5,837 31,i'46 .97,5 78,963 2,087 61 

1,101,04L ___ '!1'L __ ~ __ ~ 

$ 79,902 $ 4,741 $ 369 

50 

281,711 _______ =- ___ .1::d04) _______ • _______ ;:" _. __ (L:.~L 

___ 2~1,711 ~dQ.'!l __ ..L19~ ______ ._ . ___ (z~?1 

98,121 (83,195) 42,156 16,202 

39'1,631 . __ 3_,331,286 _ 368~~_ 3,375.403. _460,2.3.§.... 

~~~=~~~~ 



Revenues: 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Special assessments 
Interest 
Miscellaneolls 

Total revenUf,:S 

Expenditures 
Current 

Highways and streets 
Economic development 
Redevelopment and hOusing 
Santitation and recycling 

Capital outlay 
Debt service' 

Principal 
lnterest 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deflciieney)of revenues 

CDBG Parking In 
Unrestricted Lieu -,-------- ----~~-~ 

$ 

1) 13,8 

-.-~.~----- -------
___ .h136 . --------

1.5GO 

1500 -_._---'-- ,----~---~ 

over expenditures _,, _____ ~ ___ ~ ____ -_. 

Other Flnancing Sources 
(Uses) 

Transfers in 
-; ransrers out 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

"let change fund balances 

Fund balances, July 1 

balanc(''';$, June 30 

4,204 

____ :1,20"'-_________ _ 

3.842 

_, ___ .~?34, ?Ji~ 8"1 
.------~,-" 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Combining Statement of Revenue~;, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances 
iIlonmajor Governmental Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Lease City Hal! City 2007 2007 Bond 
CDBG Open Payment COP Debt 

Service 
Bond Debt Public Capitel 

Grant and Reserve ----- ------- _-,Serv~c~ Ji:ll!asiruc!ure __ Proi~cts City 

$ $ $ $ $ 

2.415 '!44 2,104 8Hl 
___ . _________ ?:'!~.2Q._ 0 _______ ,~ v_~ _____ _ 

2007 Bend 
Projects 

Totats _ 
~-----

_,B.,"_d.5!.ve!oR~L eee Pro,ect ___ .3£2.1 ____ _ 

$ $ 9,073 $ 478,899 
63,T!'1 
50853 

. __________ ,. ________ ~~21:L. 

______ 328 ___ ~~11~_ 144 _,_ 2,104 ___ 818 ____ ~ __ <-________________ 9, 1 qz... _J.Jg?_~z..~_ 

551 

55"1 ------_.- ~--~~--

____ -2.33) _",~7415 144 -----

5i 
_______ J:!?289) __ (29,84:!l 

IllS. 57!! 

200,000 
__ 169, 18L ___________ _ 

__ ~9,'81 105,578 

_1367,QZ1l , __ ....Jj£'!c.7.§..~ _____ _ 

9,073 59,939 
107. 
24938 

'178,C9t, 

220,000 
324.637 

.--~------~--. ~-,"----- -------
_____________ ________ ~_'Ql:.L _~~1§.2'7_ 

_. ________ _=_ _______ 3i.., __ 3Jli 644L 

369,181 83677 851,882 
, __________ , ___ ,1,"200,19ill ____ , __ ;83,6771. ______ -_ -.---i1.465,402L 

51 _~40.289) (29,84~,L ___ 3~ ___ 83,67L _ (1,200,193) . ____ 183,677) _________ =__ _~(613,e:?,~L 

(172) 107,126 

_____ ~_ __ 360.376 __ 

(29,700) 

29,700 

51 

2,104 (21,083) 

________ ~,083_ 

$ -

(1,200,193) 

2.000,000 -------

(83,677) 34 (898.~64) 

____ 1.690,384 ______ 1;!.~2 _,14,91~783_ 

$ 



Revenues: 
Charges for services: 
Transfer station fees $ 

Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Sanitation: 
Recycling 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other Financing Source 
Transfers in 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Integrated Waste Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budlleted Amounts 

Orillinal Final Actual 

19,000 $ 19,000 $ 17,351 
5,000 5,000 5,000 
2,000 2,000 521 

26,000 26,000 22,872 

56,274 56,274 24,938 

56,274 56,274 24,938 

~30,274~ (30,274) ~2,066) 

105,863 

(30,274) (30,274) 103,797 

p03,797~ (103,797) (103,797) 

(134,071! $ ~134,071! $ 

52 

Variance With Final 
Budget 

Positive(Negative) 

$ (1,649) 

P,479) 

(3,128) 

31,336 

31,336 

28,208 

105,863 

$ 134,071 



Revenues: 
Charges for services: 
Maintenance fees 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Highways and streets: 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Storm Drain Maintenance Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ 42,000 $ 42,000 $ 42,733 
530 530 499 

5,560 

42,530 42,530 48,792 

Srorm drain maintenance 96,046 96,046 42,955 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 96,046 96,046 42,955 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (53,516) (53,516) 5,837 

Net change in fund balances (53,516) (53,516) 5,837 

Fund balance, July 1 103,589 103,589 103,589 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 50,073 $ 50,073 $ 109,426 
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Variance With Final 
Budget Positive(Negative) 

$ 733 
(31) 

5,560 

6,262 

53,091 

53,091 

59,353 

59,353 

$ 59,353 



Revenues: 
for services: 
fees 

Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

HIr,n\lIl""'" and streets: 
Maintenance 

Total expenditures 

!:::x(;eSS(rl,:>t,r"''''''''\1\ of revenues 
over 

Other f'in~~n,.,in/l uses: 

Transfers out 

Total other 

Net in fund balances 

Fund 

Fund June 30 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Drainage Facility Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Chl::lnin~,'!l: in Fund Balance ~ Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 2011 

Amounts 

Final Actual 

5,000 
i 

$ $ 
92.256 

Variance With Final 
Budget 

$ (1 3) 
90,356 

·121 52 
-.-.~-.--.--.~.-~ .. ~ .. --.. -.---",----. 

1 ) 

o 

o 97 3 

31 

54 



Revenues: 
Intergovernmental: 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Transportation SB325 Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

TOA allocation-streets and bike $ 101,006 $ 101,006 $ 161,969 
Interest 4,300 4,300 5,884 
Miscellaneous 3,268 3,268 5,407 

Total revenues 108,574 108,574 173,260 

Expenditures: 
Highways and streets: 

Maintenance 60,000 60,000 84,162 
Capital outlay 970,000 970,000 61,123 

Total expenditures 1,030,000 1,030,000 145,285 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (921,426) (921,426) 27,975 

Other financing Sources(Uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Total Other Financing Sources 

(Uses) 

Net change in fund balances (921,426) (921,426) 27,975 

Fund balance, July 1 1,101,043 1,101,043 1,101,043 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 179,617 $ 179,617 $ 1,129,018 
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Variance With Final 
Budget 

Positive(Negative) 

$ 60,963 
1,584 
2,139 

64,686 

(24,162) 
908,877 

884,715 

949,401 

949,401 

$ 949,401 



Revenues: 

State allocations: 
Gas tax 2105 
Gas tax 2106 
Gas tax 21 07 
Gas tax 2'103 

Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Current: 
Highways and streets: 
Traffic control 

Equipment 

Total 

of revenues 

Other Sources 
Transfers in 

Net in fund balances 

Fund 

Fund balance, June 30 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Gas Tax 2105 Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance .. Budget and Actual 

$ 

For the Fisca! Year Ended June 2011 

$ 
51,197 

1'13,266 

251 

53,536 

939 

56 

Final Actual 

60,373 
5U97 

939 

$ 

79,243 
1 

215,.287 

78,963 

939 

$ 

Variance With Final 
Budget 

16,740 



Revenues: 
Intergovernmental- Gas tax 2107.5 
Interest income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Highways and streets 

Total expenditures 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other Financing Sources 
Transfers in 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, June 30 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Gas Tax 2107.5 Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ 3,000 $ 3,000 $ 3,000 
20 20 8 

3,020 3,020 3,008 

1,040 1,040 921 

1,040 1,040 921 

1,980 1,980 2,087 

1,980 1,980 2,087 

2,654 2,654 2,654 

$ 4,634 $ 4,634 $ 4,741 
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Variance With Final 
Budget 

Positive(Negative) 

$ 
(12) 

(12) 

119 

119 

107 

107 

$ 107 



Revenues: 
Charges for services 

Special assessments $ 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Economic development 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Business Improvement Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

50,170 $ 50,170 $ 50,853 
125 125 74 

50,295 50,295 50,927 

50,295 50,295 50,866 

50,295 50,295 50,866 

61 

308 308 308 

308 $ 308 $ 369 

58 

Variance With final 
Budget 

Positve(Negative) 

$ 683 
(51) 

632 

(571) 

(571) 

61 

$ 61 



Revenues: 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Redevelopment and housing: 
Rehabilitation loans 
Administration 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Housing Set Aside Special Revenue Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ 6,554 $ 6,554 $ 13,988 

6,554 6,554 13,988 

2,939,942 2,939,942 22,122 
12,855 12,855 

20,000 20,000 20,000 
155,456 155,456 155,456 

3,128,253 3,128,253 197,578 

Excess( deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (3,121,699) (3,121,699) (183,590) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 297,130 297,130 281,711 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources(uses) 297,130 297,130 281,711 

Net changes in fund balances (2,824,569) (2,824,569) 98,121 

Fund balance, July 1 3,375,403 3,375,403 3,375,403 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 550,834 $ 550,834 $ 3,473,524 

59 

Variance With Final 
Budget 

Positive(Negative) 

$ 7,434 

7,434 

2,917,820 
12,855 

2,930,675 

2,938,109 

(15,419) 

(15,419) 

2,922,690 

$ 2,922,690 



Revenues: 
Interest 
InterestMiscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Housing Revolving Loan Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ 850 $ 850 $ 1,966 
1,865 1,865 2,043 

2,715 2,715 4,009 

Redevelopment and housing: 
Administration 1,500 1,500 13,354 
Housing project loans 230,920 230,920 69,646 

Total expenditures 232,420 232,420 83,000 

Excess( deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (229,705) (229,705) (78,991) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out (4,204) 

Total other financing sources(uses) (4,204) 

Net changes in fund balances (229,705) (229,705) (83,195) 

Fund balance, July 1 460,235 460,235 460,235 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 230,530 $ 230,530 $ 377,040 
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Variance With Final 
Budget 

Positive(Negative) 

$ 1,116 
178 

1,294 

(11,854) 
161,274 

149,420 

150,714 

(4,204) 

(4,204) 

146,510 

$ 146,510 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
Unrestricted Business Revolving LoanSpecial Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 
Revenues: 

Interest $ 2,050 $ 2,050 $ 1,963 
Miscellaneous 33,000 

Total revenues 2,050 2,050 34,963 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Redevelopment and housing: 
Economic development loans 889,668 889,668 

Total expenditures 889,668 889,668 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (887,618) {887,618) 34,963 

Other Financing Source: 
Transfers in 7,195 

Net change in fund balances (887,618) (887,618) 42.158 

Fund balance, July 1 397,631 397,631 397,631 

Fund balance, June 30 $ {489,987) $ (489,987) $ 439,789 
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Variance With Final 
Budget 

Positive(Negative) 

$ (87) 
33,000 

32,913 

889,668 

889,668 

922,581 

7,195 

929,776 

$ 929,776 



Revenues: 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Economic development 

Total expenditures 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Economic Development Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ 15,370 $ 48,573 $ 16,202 

15,370 48,573 16,202 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 15,370 48,573 16,202 

Transfers out 

Net changes in fund balances 15,370 48,573 16,202 

Fund balance, July 1 3,331,286 3,331,286 3,331,286 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 3,346,656 $ 3,379,859 $ 3,347,488 
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Variance With Final 
Budget 

Positive(Negative) 

$ (32,371) 

(32,371) 

(32,371) 

(32,371) 

$ (32,371) 



Revenues: 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Redevelopment and housing: 
Economic development loans 
Administration 

Total expenditures 

Excess( deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF FORTUNA 
CDBG Business Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ 890 $ 890 $ 1,815 
5,183 5,183 5,183 

6,073 6,073 6,998 

383,607 383,607 

383,607 383,607 

(377,534! (377,534! 6,998 

(7,195) 

Total other financing sources(uses) {7,195) 

Net change in fund balances (377,534) (377,534) (197) 

Fund balance, July 1 368,260 368,260 368,260 

Fund balance, June 30 $ {9,274! $ {9,274! $ 368,063 
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Variance With 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 925 

925 

383,607 

383,607 

384,532 

(7,195) 

(7,195! 

377,337 

$ 377,337 



Revenues: 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Redevelopment and housing: 

Housing project loans 

Total expenditures 

Excess( deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing Source: 
Transfers in 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, June 30 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
COBG Unrestricted Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ 800 $ 800 $ 1,138 

800 800 1,138 

232,420 232,420 1,500 

232,420 232,420 1,500 

(231,620) (231,620) (362) 

4,204 

(231,620) (231,620) 3,842 

234,690 234,690 234,690 

$ 3,070 $ 3,070 $ 238,532 
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Variance With 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 338 

338 

230,920 

230,920 

231,258 

2,921 

234,179 

$ 234,179 



Revenues: 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess( deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, June 30 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Parking In Lieu Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ $ $ 

87 87 

$ 87 $ 87 $ 
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Variance With Final 
Budget 

Positive(Negative) 

$ 

87 

87 $ 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
COBG OPEN GRANTSpecial Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 
Revenues: 

Intergovernmental: 
CDBG pass throgh grants $ $ $ 

Interest 328 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 328 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Redevelopment and housing: 
Housing loans 
Program administration 551 
Program delivery 
Rehabilitation and grants 

Total expenditures 551 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures ~223) 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers out 51 
Transfers in 

Totals 51 

Net change in fund balances (172) 

Fund balance, July 1 172 172 172 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 172 $ 172 $ 
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Variance With 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 
328 

328 

(551) 

{551) 

(223~ 

51 

51 

(172) 

$ {172} 



Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Lease payments 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers out 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Lease Payment Debt Service Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ $ $ 
245,000 245,000 245,000 

1,900 1,900 2,415 

246,900 246,900 247,415 

246,900 246,900 247,415 

{140,289~ (140,289) {140,289) 

Total other financing sources(uses) (140,289~ {140,289} (140,289) 

Net change in fund balances 106,611 106,611 107,126 

Fund balance, July 1 360,376 360,376 360,376 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 466,987 $ 466,987 $ 467,502 
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Variance With 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 

515 

515 

515 

515 

$ 515 



Revenues: 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, June 30 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
City Hall COP Debt Service Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Ori9inal Final Actual 

$ $ $ 144 

144 

144 

(29,844) 

(29,844) 

(29,700) 

29,700 29,700 29,700 

$ 29,700 $ 29,700 $ 
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Variance With 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 144 

144 

144 

(29,844) 

(29,844} 

(29,700) 

$ {29,700) 



Revenues: 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Debt service: 

Interest 

Total <>V'~"""irlih 

of revenues 

Other sources 
Transfers out 
Transfers in 

Total other fin"nr-;nn sources 

Net in fund balances 

Fund June 30 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
City Bond Debt Service Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, and 
Changes ill Fund Balance - Budget and Actuai 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 2011 

200,000 
181 

81 

81 

181 

Amounts 

Final 
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81 

81 

81 

Actuai 

04 

200,000 
1 181 

181 

81 

04 

Variance With 
filial Budget. 

Positive 

04 

104 

104 

2,104 

104 



Revenues: 
Interest 
Misce"aneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay: 

Projects 

Total expenditures 

Excess( deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers in 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, June 30 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Public Infrastructure Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ 104 $ 104 $ 818 

104 104 818 

761,000 761,000 105,578 

761,000 761,000 105,578 

{760,896) ~760,896} P04,760) 

728,000 728,000 83,677 

(32,896) (32,896) (21,083) 

21,083 21,083 21,083 

$ {11,813~ $ ~11,813~ $ 
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Variance With 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 714 

714 

655,422 

655,422 

656,136 

(644,323) 

11,813 

$ 11,813 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
2007 Bond Capital Projects Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 
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Revenues: 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay: 

Projects 

Total expenditures 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing uses: 
Transfers out 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, June 30 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
2007 Redevelopment Bond Capital Projects Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ $ $ 

(83,677) 

(83,677) 

1,690,384 1,690,384 1,690,384 

$ 1,690,384 $ 1,690,384 $ 1,606,707 
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Variance With 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 

(83,677) 

(83,677) 

$ ~83,677) 



Revenues: 
Intergovernmental 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Economic development: 

Insurance and taxes 

Total expenditures 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
California Conservation Corps (CCC) Capital ProjectsFund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Ori9inal Final Actual 

$ 10,100 $ 10,100 $ 9,073 
59 59 34 

10,159 10,159 9,107 

10,100 10,100 9,073 

10,100 10,100 9,073 

Excess( deficiency} of revenues 
over expenditures 59 59 34 

Net change in fund balances 59 59 34 

Fund balance, July 1 7,742 7,742 7,742 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 7,801 $ 7,801 $ 7,776 
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Variance With 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (1,027) 
(25) 

(1,052) 

1,027 

1,027 

{25) 

(25) 

$ ~25) 



Revenues: 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers in 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, June 30 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
Redevelopment Agency City Debt Service Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 

$ $ $ 

204,663 204,663 
569,286 569,286 569,286 

773,949 773,949 569,286 

(773,949) (773,949) (569,286) 

773,949 773,949 773,949 

204,663 

(5,702,298) (5,702,298) (5,702,298) 

$ (5,702,298l $ (5,702,298) $ ~5,497,635) 
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Variance With 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 

204,663 

204,663 

204,663 

204,663 

$ 204,663 



CITY OF FORTUNA 
Redevelopment Agency Bond Debt Service Fund Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual 
Revenues: 

Interest $ 3,600 $ 3,600 $ 8,496 

Total revenues 3,600 3,600 8,496 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principal 60,000 60,000 60,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 466,631 466,631 466,631 

Total expenditures 526,631 526,631 526,631 

Excess(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures ~523,031} {523,031) (518,135} 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers in 523,031 523,031 518,135 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) 523,031 523,031 518,135 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, July 1 4,202,029 4,202,029 4,202,029 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 4,202,029 $ 4,202,029 $ 4,202,029 
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Variance With 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 4,896 

4,896 

4,896 

(4,896) 

(4,896) 

$ 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City of Fortuna's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the city's overall financial health. 

Financial Trends I Schedules 1-4 

These schedules contain trend information to help understand how the City's financial performance and well­
being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity I Schedules 5-8 

These schedules contain information to help assess the City's most significant local revenue sources, the 
revenues realized from property tax revenues, sales tax revenues, water enterprise revenues, and service 
fees of its wastewater enterprise. 

I Debt Capacity I Schedules 9-13 

These schedules present information to help assess the afford ability of the City's current levels of 
outstanding debt and the city's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information Schedules 14-15 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help understand the environment within which 
the City's financial activities take place. 

Operating Information Schedules 16-18 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help understand how the information in the City's 
financial report relates to services the City provides and the activities it performs. 



Schedule 1 
City of Fortuna 

Net Assets by Component 
Last Eight Fiscal Years 

(Accrual basis of accounting) 

For The Fiscal Years Ended June 30 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 * 2011 

Governmental activities: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 1,226,738 $ 1,419,321 $ 1,581,792 $ 1,821,091 $ (7,493,040) $ (7,336,646) $ (7,255,550) $ (5,615,882) 
Restricted 9,256,792 11,668,561 12,693,202 15,908,465 26,899,519 27,823,102 27,138,801 

Debt Service 4,204,133 
Affordable Housing 7,952,836 
Redevelopment 12,052,844 
Streets 2,983,854 
Other purposes 53,845 

Unrestricted 2,240,080 3,137,536 2,8431036 4,165,357 6,192,645 6,086,885 6,411,682 5,889,376 

Total governmental activities net assets $ 12,723,610 $ 16,225,418 $ 17,118,030 $ 21,894,913 $ 25,599,124 $ 26,573,341 $ 26,294,933 $ 27,521,006 

Business-type activities: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 14,989,034 $ 16,350,258 $ 17,304,740 $ 16,407,275 $ 16,893,024 $ 19,589,157 $ 19,270,829 $ 21,990,839 
Restricted 1,430,013 1,769,626 1,040,437 2,427,423 6,240,702 4,343,859 3,654,895 

Debt Service 1,408,347 
Capital Projects 1,532,031 
Other purposes 211,452 

Unrestricted 4,138,449 3,330,608 4,044,904 5,158,345 3,582,859 5,809,775 8,733,779 8,714,743 

Total business-type activities $ 20,557,496 $ 21,450,492 $ 22,390,081 $ 23,993,043 $ 26,716,585 $ 29,742,791 $ 31,659,503 $ 33,857,412 

Primary government (City wide totals) 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 16,215,772 $ 17,769,579 $ 18,886,532 $ 18,228,366 $ 9,399,984 $ 12,252,511 $ 12,015,279 $ 16,374,957 
Restricted 10,686,805 13,438,187 13,733,639 18,335,888 33,140,221 32,166,961 30,793,696 

Debt Service 5,612,480 
Capital Projects 1,532,031 
Affordable Housing 7,952,836 
Redevelopment 12,052,844 
Streets 2,983,854 
Other purposes 265,297 

Unrestricted 6,378,529 6,468,144 6,887,940 9,323,702 9,775,504 11,896,660 15,145,461 14,604,119 

Total primary government net assets $ 33,281,106 $ 37,675,910 $ 39,508,111 $ 45,887,956 $ 52,315,709 $ 56,316,132 $ 57,954,436 $ 61,378,418 

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement Number 34 in the 2004 fiscal year. The information in this schedule is therefore set forth prospectively from the year of implementation. 
* Fund Balances for fiscal year 2011 have been reclassified per GASG 54 new fund balance reporting standards. 
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Schedule 2 -Continued 
City of Fortuna 

Changes In Net Assets, Last Eight Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

For The Fiscal Years Ended June 30 

2004 2005 2006 
Net(Expense)Revenue: 

Govemmental activities $ (1,463,476) $ (622,242) $ (3,436,310) $ 
Business-type activHies 1,714,720 905,391 951,853 

Total City govemment $ 251,244 $ 283,149 $ (2,484,457) $ 

General Revenues and Other Changes In 
In Net Assets: 

Govemmental activities: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes $ 235,841 $ 259,886 $ 310,342 $ 
Incremental property taxes 620,253 681,169 809,616 
Sales taxes 1,281,183 1,362,098 1,372,614 
Transit occupancy taxes 386,430 392,845 405,347 
Other taxes 287,009 306,290 313,242 

Unrestricted grants and contributions 
Motor vehicle in lieu fees not 

restricted to a specific program 518,029 849,130 769,183 
Unrestricted investment earnings 533,276 180,081 246,580 
Other general revenues 78,806 80,156 89,734 
Transfers 1,874,530 12,395 12,264 

Total governmental activities 5,815,357 4,124,050 4,328,922 

Business-type activities 
Investment earnings 
Transfers (1,874,530) (12,395) (12,264) 

Total business-type activities (1,674,530) (12,395) (12,264) 

Total City govemment $ 3,940,827 $ 4,111,655 $ 4,316,656 $ 

Change In net assets: 
Govemmental activities $ 4,351,881 $ 3,501,608 $ 892,612 $ 
Business-type activities (159,810) 892,996 939,589 

Total City govemment $ 4,192,071 $ 4,394,804 $ 1,832,201 $ 

Note:The city implemented GASB Statement Number 34 in the 2004 fiscal year. The information in this 
schedule is therefore set forth prospectively from the year of implementation. 
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2007 

(287,988) $ 
1,624,414 

1,336,426 $ 

343,408 $ 
1,011,169 
1,480,367 

469,567 
374,640 

891,241 
373,055 
99,972 
21,452 

5,064,871 

(21,452) 

(21,452) 

5,043,419 $ 

4,776,883 $ 
1,602,962 

6,379,845 $ 

2008 2009 2010 2011 

(1,454,813) $ (4,293,510) $ (5,501,949) $ (4,230,661) 
2,735,859 3,035,361 1,926,009 2,207,212 

1,281,046 $ (1,258,149) $ (3,575,940) $ (2,023,449) 

349,486 $ 361,047 $ 363,001 $ 342,196 
1,064,985 1,164,282 1,146,316 1,126,845 
1,534,032 1,592,423 1,310,196 1,464,916 

473,376 447,337 443,975 472,144 
346,639 435,311 415,237 464,119 

930,346 974,570 1,012,708 1,001,771 
344,607 195,433 210,656 502,414 
103,236 88,169 312,157 73,026 

12,317 9,155 9,297 9,303 

5,159,024 5,267,727 5,223,541 5,456,734 

(12,317) (9,155) (9,297) (9,303) 

(12,317) (9,155) (9,297) (9,303) 

5,146,7QL $ 5,258,572 $ 5,214,244 $ 5,447,431 

3,704,211 $ 974,217 $ (278,408) $ 1,226,073 
2,723,542 3,026,206 1,916,712 2,197,909 

6,427,753 $ 4,000,423 $ 1,638,304 $ 3,423,982 



General Fund 
Reserved 
Unreserved 

Restricted 
Committed 

Total General Fund 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Reserved 

Debt Service Funds 

Restricted 
Committed 

$ $ 

Fund 

'124 
3,477,888 

148,608 
17) 

$ 

Schedule :3 
of Fortuna 
Governmental Funds 

Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year Ended Jun 30, 
2007 2008 2009 

$ 

$ 

137,226 

--------

4,529,999 

122,392 
91 

$ 5,023,783 
794,894 

$ 1 

(1 
3,"753,560 

,446,213) 

2010 * 2011 

$ 4,849,460 
3 

707 $ 

3,719,209 
,110,1 

771,197 

1,453,669 

Total All Other Governmental Funds TT,820224 ',._,-- '-,--' 

Total Governmental Funds 

Not;,): The City implemented GASB Statement Number 34 in the 2004 fiscal year and GASB Statement Number 54 in the 2011 fiscal year. The infofmi:nion 

schedule is therefore set forth prospectiveiy from the year of implementation. 

* Fund Balances for year 2011 have bean reclassified per GASG 54 new fund balance reporting standards. 
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Schedule 4 
City of Fortuna 

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(In Rounded Thousands of Dollars) 
(Modified acrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 
Revenues: 

Taxes $ 2,362 $ 2,540 $ 2,810 3,002 $ 3,211 $ 3,679 $ 3,769 $ 4,000 $ 3,539 $ 3,870 
Licenses and permits 232 225 240 197 155 173 104 111 84 121 
Fines and forfeits 34 43 59 91 93 98 92 79 79 86 
Charges for services 592 777 887 1,007 945 1,059 1,142 883 764 869 
Special assessments 45 48 50 51 54 53 50 51 
Intergovernmental 1,265 1,803 2,904 2,904 1,899 5,460 2,650 1,825 2,176 3,303 
Investment earnings 1,122 1,124 742 388 519 915 1,066 681 372 673 
Other revenues 607 223 831 959 936 1,302 918 684 670 434 

Total revenues 6,214 6,735 8,518 8,596 7,808 12,737 9,795 8,316 7,734 9,407 

Expenditures: 

General government 482 678 715 702 684 704 799 940 942 967 
Public safety 1,487 1,587 1,657 2,010 2,565 2,652 2,605 2,741 2,939 2,961 
Parks and recreation 573 736 738 814 856 931 1,005 964 963 1,073 
Highways and streets 502 1,182 515 479 545 663 739 754 783 745 
Health and welfare 264 7 16 70 164 50 64 53 49 25 
Economic development 

and redevelopment 187 151 2,094 2,520 600 4,131 953 478 843 311 
Education SERAF payments 460 95 
Capital outlay 962 240 986 618 505 504 679 498 411 3,396 
Debt service: 
Payment to escrow agent 484 
Costs of issuance 606 
Principal 110 121 132 138 148 159 225 285 280 
Interest 1,209 1,293 1,385 515 606 695 911 944 1,022 1,361 

Total expenditures 5,776 5,995 8,238 7,866 6,673 10,489 8,845 7,597 8,697 11,214 

Excess of revenues 
over(under) 
expenditures 438 740 280 1,346 1,135 2,248 950 719 {963~ {1,807} 

Other Financing 
Sources(Uses) 
Proceeds from borrowing 1,061 1,012 17,577 
Payment to escrow agent (2,803) 
Gain on sale of land for resale 
Purchase of land for resale 
Transfers in 1,354 1,260 6,026 2,479 1,032 1,166 16,895 1,448 2,915 3,184 
Transfers out (1,342) {1,248} {4,151} {2,466} p,020~ {1,145} {16,8842 {1,439~ {2,906) {3,1752 

Total other financing 
sources(uses) 1,073 1,024 1,875 13 12 21 14,785 9 9 9 

Net change in fund 
balances 1,511 1,764 2,155 1,359 1,147 $ 2,269 $15,735 $ 728 $ {954} $ {1,798~ 

Debt service as a 
percentage of non capital 
expenditures 27.40% 24.57% 20.92% 9.01% 12.22% 8.55% 24.50% 16.47% 15.77% 20.99% 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2001-2002 

2002-2003 

2003-2004 

2004-2005 

2005-2006 

2006-2007 

2007-2008 

2008-2009 

2009-2010 

2010-2011 

Schedule 5 
City of Fortuna 

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(In thousands of dollars) 

Assessed Taxable Values Estimated 
Total Direct Actual 

Secured Unsecured Totals Tax Rate Taxable Value 

444,708 25,818 470,526 1.00% 1,148,653 

475,779 25,780 501,559 1.00% 1,226,276 

513,700 28,521 542,221 1.00% 1,324,994 

556,052 29,536 585,588 1.00% 1,432,324 

619,836 30,661 650,497 1.00% 1,593,391 

691,689 31,924 723,613 1.00% 1,774,828 

747,213 34,982 782,195 1.00% 1,918,007 

797,594 37,622 835,216 1.00% 2,047,731 

828,504 39,727 868,231 1.00% 2,128,013 

818,879 36,689 855,568 1.00% 2,099,610 

Source: Hdl, Coren & Cone, Humboldt County Assessor Combined Tax Rolls. 

Assessed Value 
as a Percentage 
of Actual Value 

40.96% 

40.90% 

40.92% 

40.88% 

40.82% 

40.77% 

40.78% 

40.79% 

40.80% 

40.75% 

Note: Property in Humboldt County is assessed at market value in the year in which the property is exchanged 
pursuant to a sale. In years thereafter, the assessed value is increased by one percent as required by 
state law. Based upon the frequency of property exchanges, assessed value is estimated to be about 
40 percent of actual value for secured property and about 70 percent for unsecured property. Estimated actual 
value is calculated by dividing assessed value by those percentages. Tax rates are per $100 of 
assessed values. 
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Fiscal 

Year 

2001-2002 

2002-2003 

2003-2004 

2004-2005 

2005-2006 

2006-2007 

2007-2008 

2008-2009 

2009-2010 

2010-2011 

Schedule 6 
City of Fortuna 

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
For The Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Rates per $100 of assessed value) 

10 Year Detail of Rates producing Revenue for City and Assoiated Redevelopment Agency 

Cit~ General Fund Rates RDA Incremental Rate Total Direct Rate 
City Share Total Prop. 13 + applicable 

of 1% Levy Debt City voter approved debt' 

per Prop 13 Rates Rates 

0.07327% 0.00% 0.07327% 1.00% 0.20996% 

0.07327% 0.00% 0.07327% 1.00% 0.23336% 

0.07327% 0.00% 0.07327% 1.00% 0.23784% 

0.07327% 0.00% 0.07327% 1.00% 0.24287% 

0.07327% 0.00% 0.07327% 1.00% 0.25126% 

0.07327% 0.00% 0.07327% 1.00% 0.25549% 

0.07327% 0.00% 0.07327% 1.00% 0.23571% 

0.07327% 0.00% 0.07327% 1.00% 0.23826% 

0.07327% 0.00% 0.07327% 1.00% 0.23916% 

0.07327% 0.00% 0.07327% 1.00% 0.23753% 
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Schedule 6 
City of Fortuna 

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
For The Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Rates per $100 of assessed value) 

10 Year Detail of all Taxpayer Rates for largest General Fund Tax Rate Area 005-0000 (direct rate agencies in bold) 
Agency 2001-2002 2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008 2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 

City of Fortuna Tax And Fine Trust 0.07327 0.07327 0.07327 0.07327 0.07327 0.07327 0.07327 0.07327 0.07327 0.07327 

County Library 0.03020 0.03020 0.03020 0.03020 0.03020 0.03020 0.03020 0.03020 0.03020 0.03020 

County School Service 0.01470 0.01470 0.01470 0.01470 0.01470 0.01470 0.01470 0.01470 0.01470 0.01470 

Fortuna Cemetery District 0.00409 0.00409 0.00409 0.00409 0.00409 0.00409 0.00409 0.00409 0.00409 0.00409 

Fortuna Fire Protection 0.04166 0.04166 0.04166 0.04166 0.04166 0.04166 0.04166 0.04166 0.04170 0.04170 

Fortuna Union High School District 0.21344 0.21344 0.21344 0.21344 0.21344 0.21344 0.21344 0.21344 0.21340 0.21340 

Fortuna Union School District 0.21961 0.21961 0.21961 0.21961 0.21961 0.21961 0.21961 0.21961 0.21961 0.21961 

General 0.32120 0.32120 0.32120 0.32120 0.32120 0.32120 0.32120 0.32120 0.32120 0.32120 

Humboldt Bay Harbor Recreation 0.00930 0.00930 0.00930 0.00930 0.00930 0.00930 0.00930 0.00930 0.00930 0.00930 

Humboldt Flood Zone 1-1 0.00564 0.00564 0.00564 0.00564 0.00564 0.00564 0.00564 0.00564 0.00564 0.00564 

Redwood Junior College District 0.06488 0.06488 0.06488 0.06488 0.06488 0.06488 0.06488 0.06488 0.06488 0.06488 

Rohner Community Park & Recreation Dist. 0.00201 0.00201 0.00201 0.00201 0.00201 0.00201 0.00201 0.00201 0.00201 0.00201 

Total Prop. 13 Rate 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 

CR 2005 Go Bond 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.01300 0.01000 0.01500 0.01200 0.01300 0.0'1300 

Fortuna High Go Bonds 2000 0.01000 0.00800 0.01000 0.00700 0.00700 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00400 0.00400 

Fortuna Union Elementary Bond - 2006 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.02600 0.02500 0.02700 0.03000 

Total Voter Approved Rate 0.01000 0.00800 0.01000 0.00700 0.02000 0.01500 0.04600 0.04200 0.04400 0.04700 

Total Tax Rate 1.01000 1.00800 1.01000 1.00700 1.02000 1.01500 1.04600 1.04200 1.04400 1.04700 

Notes: 
General fund tax rates are representative and based upon tl1e direct and overtapping rates for the largest General Fund tax rate area (TRA) by net taxable value. 

Total Direct Rate is tl1e weighted average of all individual direct rates applied by the government preapaling tl1e staststicel section information. The percentages preseneted in the columns above do not sum across rows. 

RDA rate is based on tl1e largest RDA tax rate area (TRA) and inlcudss only rate(s) from indebtedness adopted prior to 1989 per California State statute. RDA direct and overtapping rates are applied only to tl1e incremental property values. 

In 1978. California voters passed Proposition 13 which set the property tax rate at a 1.00% fixed amount. This 1.00% is shared by all taxing agencies for which tl1e subject property resides within. In addition to tl1e 1.00% fixed amount, 

property owners are charged taxes as a percentage of assessed property values for tl1e payment of any voter approved bonds. 

Source: HDL Coren & Cone, and Humboldt County Assessor 2001/02 - 2010/11 Tax Rate Table 
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Peterson Tractor 
Giffra Ranch Fortuna lLC 
J.H. & H.J. Weiner 
Safeway Stores Inc. 
Fortuna Assisted LLC 
Fortuna Inc. 
Carl Marchetti Jr. Trust 
Patrick Odell MS 
Fortuna Cottaoes LLC 

Total 

Source: Hdl Coren & Cone 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value 

5.546 
5,190 
5,00'1 
4,664 

4,644 
4,571 

745 

Schedule 1 
of Fortuna 

Ten Payers 
Ranked In Order of Gross Assessed Values 

Current Year and Ten Years 
Amounts ill 

200'1-2002 ----.--. -----~~--~---
Total Taxable 

Taxable Assessed 
Rank Assessed Value 

2 0.65% Humboldt Publishing 5,424 
3 0.61% Dominic C. Gagliardi Trust 4,284 
4 0.58% Safeway Stores Inc. 4,247 
5 0.55% C & K Market 3,44"7 
6 0.54% FOliuna Communications 3,025 

0.54% Carl Marchetti Jr. Trust 2,879 
8 0.53% Royal Crest Investors 
9 0.50% Dennis Wendt Trust 

10 OA4% Hazelton 

Total 
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Taxable 
Rank 

2 115% 
3 0.91% 

0.90% 
5 0."73% 
6 0.64% 
7 0.61% 
8 0.57% 
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Schedule 8 
City of Fortuna 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Collected Within The Fiscal Year 
of The Levy 

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied 
Ended For The 

June 30 Fiscal Year Amount 

2002 709,859 $ 709,859 

2003 757,664 $ 757,664 

2004 856,094 $ 856,094 

2005 941,055 $ 941,055 

2006 1,119,958 $ 1,119,958 

2007 1,354,577 $ 1,354,577 

2008 1,414,471 $ 1,414,471 

2009 1,525,329 $ 1,525,329 

2010 1,369,811 $ 1,369,811 

2011 1,469,042 $ 1,469,042 

Note: Source is City of Fortuna Tax Collection records and Humboldt County 
Assessor records. Property taxes are levied and collected pursuant to an arrangement 
commonly referred to as the Teeter Plan. Under the Teeter Plan, the County allocates and 
remits to the City the full amount of each years tax levy, and the County then retains 
any delinquencies as collected by the County 
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Percentage 
of 

Levy 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 



Schedule 8-A 
City of Fortuna 

Sales Tax Revenue Base Data 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Revenue Base Total 
City-Wide Retail City Revenue 

Fiscal Retail Sales Sales Direct Recognized 
Year Subject to Tax Tax Rate Tax Rate By the City 

2002 116,306,600 7.25% 1.00% 1,163,066 

2003 122,601,300 7.25% 1.00% 1,226,013 

2004 128,118,300 7.25% 1.00% 1,281,183 

2005 136,209,800 7.25% 1.00% 1,362,098 

2006 137,261,400 7.25% 1.00% 1,372,614 

2007 148,036,700 7.25% 1.00% 1,480,367 

2008 153,403,200 7.25% 1.00% 1,534,032 

2009 159,242,300 8.25% 1.00% 1,592,423 

2010 131,019,600 8.25% 1.00% 1,310,196 

2011 146,491,600 7.25% 1.00% 1,464,916 

Note: The City's direct retail sales tax rate is established pursuant to the City's Minicipal Code. 
Any increase in the City's direct tax rate requires voter approval 

The total sales tax rate rose from 7.25% to 8.25% on April 1, 2009. 
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BUSiness Name 

Ace Hardware & Garden 
Beverage Plus Foods 
Burger King 
C Crane Company 
Eel River Brewing 
Eel River Hydroponics 
Forbusco Lumber 
Fortuna Chevron 
Fortuna Ford Motors 
Fortuna Gas 4 Less 
Gary Crivellos Cars 
Hummel Tire and Wheel 
Kragen Auto Parts 
L & M Renner 
Les Schwab Tire Centers 
McDonalds 
Mercer Fraser 

2010-2011 

Northcoast Horticulture Supply 
Peterson Tractor 
Rays Food Place 
Rite Aid 
Rohnerville 76 
Safeway 
Village Sport & Cycle 
Walgreens 

Schedule 8-B 
City of Fortuna 

Top 25 Sales Tax Producers 
Current Year and Ten Years Ago 

(In Alphabetical Order) 

Business Catagory 

Hardware Stores 
Grocery Stores Liquor 
Restaurants No Alcohol 
Electronics/Appliance Stores 
Restaurants Beer and Wine 
Garden/Agricultural Supplies 
Lumber/Building Materials 
Service Stations 
New Motor Vehicle Dealers 
Service Stations 
Used Auto Dealers 
Automotive Supply Stores 
Automotive Supply Stores 
Petroleum Prod/Equipment 
Automotive Supply Stores 
Restaurants No Alcohol 
Contractors 
Garden/Agricultural Supplies 
Farm/Construction Equipment 
Grocery Stores Liquor 
Drug Stores 
Service Stations 

Business Name 

Beverage Plus Foods 
Burger King 
C Crane Company 
Coast To Coast 
Dennys Restaurant 
Dollar Tree 
Forbusco Lumber 
Fortuna Chevron 
Fortuna Ford Motors 
Fortuna Gas 4 Less 
Gary Crivellos Cars 
Johnson & Carter 
L & M Renner 
Les Schwab Tire Centers 
Lows Furniture Company 
Mercer Fraser 
Pacific Lumber Company 
Rays Food Place 
Rays Used Cars 
Rite Aid 
Rohnerville 76 
Safeway 

2001-2002 

Grocery Stores Liquor 
Sporting Goods/Bike Stores 
Drug Stores 

Timberland Chev Geo Pontiac Olds 
Village Sport & Cycle 
Western Auto Associate Store 

Business Catagory 

Grocery Stores Liquor 
Restaurants No Alcohol 
Electronics/Appliance Stores 
Hardware Stores 
Restaurants Beer & Wine 
Variety Store 
Lumber/Building Materials 
Service Stations 
New Motor Vehicle Dealers 
Service Stations 
Used Auto Dealers 
Petroleum Prod/Equip 
Petroleum Prod/Equip 
Automotive Supply Stores 
Home Furnishings 
Contractors 
Contractors 
Grocery Stores Liquor 
Used Auto Dealers 
Drug Stores 
Service Stations 
Grocery Stores Liquor 
New Motor Vehicle Dealers 
Sporting Goods/Bike Stores 
General Merchandise 

Percent of Fiscal Year Total Paid By Top 25 Accounts = 70.73% Percent of Fiscal Year Total Paid By Top 25 Accounts = 68.27% 

Period: April 2010 - March 2011 Period: April 2001 - March 2002 

Source: Hinderliter, de Llamas & Associates, State Board of Equalization 
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Schedule 8-C 
City of Fortuna 

Transient Occupany Tax Revenue Base Data 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Revenue Base City Revenue 
Fiscal Room Revenues Direct Recognized 
Year Subject to Tax Tax Rate By the City 

2002 $ 2,907,988 8.00% 232,639 

2003 3,078,188 10.00% 284,198 

2004 $ 3,864,300 10.00% 386,430 

2005 $ 3,928,450 10.00% 392,845 

2006 $ 4,053,470 10.00% 405,347 

2007 $ 4,695,670 10.00% 469,567 

2008 $ 4,733,760 10.00% 473,376 

2009 $ 4,473,370 10.00% 447,337 

2010 $ 4,439,745 10.00% 443,975 

2011 $ 4,721,438 10.00% 472,144 

Note: The transient occupancy tax can only be changed by approval of the voters, and 
the rate was increased effective October 1, 2002 by a special election. 
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2011 

Best Western Motel 
Comfort Inn 
Fortuna Travel Inn 
Holiday Inn Express 
National Nine 
Riverwalk RV Park 
Six Rivers Motel 
Super 8 Motel 

2007 

Best Western Motel 
Comfort Inn 
Fortuna Motor Lodge 
Holiday Inn Express 
National Nine 
Riverwalk RV Park 
Six Rivers Motel 
Super 8 Motel 

Schedule 8 0 
City of Fortuna 

Principal Transient OccupancyTax Payers 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(In Alphbetical Order) 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30 

2010 2009 

Best Western Motel Best Western Motel 
Comfort Inn Comfort Inn 
Fortuna Travel Inn Fortuna Travel Inn 
Holiday Inn Express Holiday Inn Express 
National Nine National Nine 
Riverwalk RV Park Riverwalk RV Park 
Six Rivers Motel Six Rivers Motel 
Super 8 Motel Super 8 Motel 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30 

2006 2005 

Best Western Motel Best Western Motel 
Comfort Inn Comfort Inn 
Fortuna Motor Lodge Fortuna Motor Lodge 
Holiday Inn Express Holiday Inn Express 
National Nine National Nine 
Riverwalk RV Park Riverwalk RV Park 
Six Rivers Motel Six Rivers Motel 
Super 8 Motel Super 8 Motel 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

2003 

Best Western Motel 
Comfort Inn 
Fortuna Motor Lodge 
Holiday Inn Express 
National Nine 
Riverwalk RV Park 
Six Rivers Motel 
Super 8 Motel 

2002 

Best Western Motel 
Comfort Inn 
Fortuna Motor Lodge 
Holiday Inn Express 
National Nine 
Riverwalk RV Park 
Six Rivers Motel 
Super 8 Motel 

89 

2008 

Best Western Motel 
Comfort Inn 
Fortuna Motor Lodge 
Holiday Inn Express 
National Nine 
Riverwalk RV Park 
Six Rivers Motel 
Super 8 Motel 

2004 

Best Western Motel 
Comfort Inn 
Fortuna Motor Lodge 
Holiday Inn Express 
National Nine 
Riverwalk RV Park 
Six Rivers Motel 
Super 8 Motel 



Schedule 8~E 
City of Fortuna 

Water and Sewer Rates 
last Ten Fiscal Years 

Water Sewer 

Fiscal Base Per 100 Base Per 00 
Year Rate Cubic Feet Rate Cubic Feet ,---- --=---~--~ ----

2002 7.98 .01 13.83 n/a 

2003 10.98 1.39 16.83 n/a 

2004 11.58 1.4"1 ·19.8:i nia 

2005 '12.21 1.55 21.81 n/a 

2006 12.21 1.55 21.81 n/e 

2007 13.42 1.42 21.54 4.79 

2008 15.49 1.53 33.14 7.36 

2009 22.20 1.64 3602 ROO 

2010 22.60 1.77 37.41 8.31 

201 23.04 1.90 38 .. 75 8.61 
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Schedule 8 - F 
City of Fortuna 

Water and Wastewater Principal Payers - Revenue Concentration Data 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Water Revenue Concentration Data 

Residential Non-Residential Totals 
Number Number Number 

Fiscal Revenue of Revenue of Revenue of 
Year In Dollars Customers In Dollars Customers In Dollars Connections 

2002 Not Available 4456 Not Available 488 Not Available 4944 

2003 $ 832,207 4541 $ 167,997 495 $ 1,000,204 5036 

2004 $ 1,081,929 4593 $ 212,154 496 $ 1,294,083 5089 

2005 $ 1,116,851 4716 $ 219,313 503 $ 1,336,164 5219 

2006 $ 1,139,049 4794 $ 202,234 511 $ 1,341,283 5305 

2007 $ 1,116,416 4872 $ 326,639 519 $ 1,443,055 5391 

2008 $ 1,251,548 4925 $ 423,385 546 $ 1,674,933 5471 

2009 $ 1,556,172 4949 $ 700,031 542 $ 2,256,203 5491 

2010 $ 1,561,030 4958 $ 715,675 542 $ 2,276,705 5500 

2011 $ 1,483,040 4968 $ 654,584 542 $ 2,137,624 5510 

Wastewater Revenue Concentration Data 

Residential Non-Residential Totals 
Number Number Number 

Fiscal Revenue of Revenue of Revenue of 
Year In Dollars Customers In Dollars Customers In Dollars Connections 

2002 Not Available 4199 Not Available 437 Not Available 4636 

2003 $ 764,477 4302 $ 252,867 443 $ 1,017,344 4745 

2004 $ 962,118 4360 $ 317,664 448 $ 1,279,782 4808 

2005 $ 1,076,412 4474 $ 339,524 455 $ 1,415,936 4929 

2006 $ 1,076,505 4548 $ 348,159 462 $ 1,424,664 5010 

2007 $ 1,591,692 4625 $ 526,214 474 $ 2,117,906 5099 

2008 $ 2,506,067 4672 $ 792,643 495 $ 3,298,711 5167 

2009 $ 2,672,790 4697 $ 821,763 494 $ 3,494,553 5191 

2010 $ 2,599,203 4704 $ 805,808 494 $ 3,405,011 5198 

2011 $ 2,533,068 4714 $ 824,955 494 $ 3,358,023 5208 

Note:Revenue Totals come from subsidary utility billing journals and do not include year end closing adjustments. 
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General 
Fiscal Obligation 
Year Bonds 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

Schedule 9 
City of Fortuna 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt By Type 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Dollars in Thousands except for Per Capita) 

Total 
Governmental Activities Business-~~e Activities City Debt as Total 

Tax Certificates 
Allocation of Revenue 

Bonds Partici~ation Bonds 

1,260 341 

1,230 331 

1,200 319 

1,170 307 

1,135 294 

1,100 280 

17,500 

17,275 

16,990 

16,710 

Capital Certificates Total Percentage of City Debt 
Lease of Revenue City Personal Per 

Obliaations Loans Partici~ation Bonds Debt Income Ca~ita ~ulation 

2,425 273 795 5,094 2.79% $ 472 

2,345 250 755 4,911 2.64% $ 447 

2,255 224 713 4,711 2.44% $ 423 

2,160 195 668 4,500 2.20% $ 400 

2,060 164 620 4,273 1.99% $ 377 

1,950 129 21,905 25,364 11.14% $ 2,238 

90 21,715 39,305 16.63% $ 3,470 

47 21,470 38,792 16.25% $ 3,419 

21,140 38,130 16.38% $ 3,355 

20,735 37,445 16.09% $ 3,295 

*2011 per capita personal income not final- 2010 used in calculation 

Population & Per Capita Personal Income Source: HdL Coren & Cone 
In prior years, demographic information was for Humboldt County as a whole. Demographic data provided by 
HdL Coren & Cone is totaled from Census Block Groups that overlap the City's boundries. 
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10,784 

10,977 

11,125 

11,255 

11,326 

11,333 

11,327 

11,345 

11,364 

11,364 

Per Capita 
Personal 
Income 

16,901 

16,959 

17,347' 

18,155 

18,935 

20,093 

20,863 

21,040 

20,483 

20,483 * 



General 
Fiscal Obligation 
Year Bonds 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

Schedule 10 
City of Fortuna 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

General Bonded Debt Outstandin9 

Tax 
Revenue Allocation 

Bonds Bonds Total 

1,260,000 1,260,000 

1,230,000 1,230,000 

1,200,000 1,200,000 

1,170,000 1,170,000 

1,135,000 1,135,000 

1,100,000 1,100,000 

13,280,000 13,280,000 

13,235,000 13,235,000 

13,140,000 13,140,000 

13,060,000 13,060,000 

Note: See schedule 5 for total assessed values of property. 
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Percentage of 
Actual Taxable 

Value of Per 
Property Capita 

0.27% 116.84 

0.25% 112.05 

0.22% 107.87 

0.20% 103.95 

0.17% 100.21 

0.15% 97.06 

1.70% 1,172.42 

1.58% 1,166.59 

1.51% 1,156.28 

1.53% 1,149.24 



Schedule l! 
of Fortuna 

l)irect and Governmental Activities Debt 
As of June 30, 2011 

201 1 Assessed Valuation: 
Redevelopment. Incrementa! Valuation: 
i-\Llll""CU Assessed Valuation: 

Fortuna UnIon School District 
Rohnervillc School Dislrict 

$703,384,954 

Humboldt Harbor Recreation and Conservation District 
of Fortuna 1915 Act Bonds 

TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX Ai'lD ASSESS.MENT DEBT 

Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment DebL, ... ", ....... "., ... , ... 0.81 % 

Redwoods Joint District Certificates 
of Fortuna GeneralFllnd Obligations 

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAl. FUND DEBT 

TOTAL DIRECT DEBT 
TOTAL OVERLAPPlNG DEBT 

COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 

Tota! Debt 
l?il()!J~ 

l,185,000 
5,795,753 
2,000,000 
2,535,000 

220,000 

$12,610,000 
700,000 
484,400 

3,650,000 

assessed valuation located within boundaries of the 

4 .. 905% 
44.799 
72.672 
R5.975 

7.070 
100. 

7.070% 
7,070 
4.905 

100, 

Share of 
I!51l!1f!L~J)! I 1 

530,868 
2,758,450 
l, 719,500 

179,225 

$ 891,527 
49,490 
23,760 

$3,650,000 

$11,505356 (2) 

notes, ,'nl[".,.,,,,-i·,,, revenue, mortgage revenue and tax alJocal.ion bonds and non-bonded 

Combined Total Debt .............................. , ... , ....................... 1.64% 

$0 

Source: Calilbmia Statistics, Inc. 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

Schedule 12 
City of Fortuna 

Legal Debt Margin Information 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Debt 
Limit 

70,581,384 

75,280,380 

81,214,407 

87,838,264 

97,574,663 

$ 108,541,973 

$ 117,329,294 

$ 125,282,418 

$ 130,234,662 

$ 128,335,243 

Total Debt 
Applicable 
To Limit 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2010 

Assessed value $ 

Debt limit (15% of assessed value) 

Less debt applicable to limit: 
General obligation bonds 

Total debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin $ 

Total Debt 
Applicable 
To Limit as 
Percentage 
of Debt Limit 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

855,568,285 

128,335,243 

128,335,243 

Under state finance law, the city's outstanding general obligation bonded 
debt should not exceed 15 percent of total assessed property value. 

Source of Assessed Taxable Values: HdL, Coren and Cone, 
Humboldt County Assessor Combined Tax Rolls 
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Noles: 

Schedule 13 
City of Fortuna 

Pledged Revenue Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Water Certificates of Particil!atlon 
Water Capital Less Net Debt Service 

2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 

Service 
Revenues 

1.057.199 
1.097.068 
1.334,403 
1.624,406 
1,430.841 
1.494.673 
1.633.751 
1.847.225 
2.324.727 
2.258.251 
2.313.537 

Impact 
Fees 

229.750 
544.546 
419,479 
445.937 

96.381 
72.969 
74.509 
65.152 
30.014 
10.560 
19.486 

Operating Available 
E~nses Revenue Princi2al Interest 

492,548 794,401 35.000 60.690 
551.686 1.089.928 37.000 58.240 
600.043 1.153.839 40.000 56.750 
704.928 1.365.415 42.000 51.850 
687.088 840.134 45.000 49.910 
733.227 834,415 48.000 48.760 
848.444 859.816 21.700 
939.052 973.325 

1.058,791 1.295.950 
1.074,418 1.194.393 
1.195.119 1.137.904 

Water Revenue Bonds 
Water Capital Less Net Debt Service 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 

Service 
Revenues 

1.633.751 
1.847.225 
2.324.727 
2.258.251 
2.313.537 

Impact 
Fees 

74.509 
65.152 
30.014 
10.560 
19.486 

Operating Available 
Expenses Revenue Princieal Interest 

848.444 859.816 174.641 
939,052 973.325 369.829 

1.058,791 1.295.950 369.829 
1.074.418 1.194.393 70.000 368.078 
1.195.119 1.137.904 135.000 364.051 

Wastewater Revenue Bonds 
Wastwater Capital Less Net Debt Service 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 

Service Impact Operating 
Revenues Fees Ex~ses 

2.288,744 151.257 1.051.685 
3.468.226 102.887 1,140.051 
3.629.310 72.785 1.225.252 
3.531.553 50.066 1.885.749 
3.602.361 200.620 1.716.516 

RDA Tax Allocation Bonds 
Property Debt Service 

Tax 
Increment Princieal Interest 

357.419 25.000 82.289 
394.211 25.000 80,945 
509.036 25.000 79.545 
550.614 30.000 77,963 
620.253 30.000 76.208 
681.169 30.000 74.423 
809.816 35.000 72,455 

1.011.169 35.000 70.303 
1.064.985 
1.164.282 
1.146.316 
1.126.845 

RDA Revenue Bonds 
Property Debt Service 

Tax 
Increment Princieal Interest 

1.064.985 317.164 
1.164.282 45.000 629.699 
1.148.316 95.000 626.199 
1.126.845 80.000 621.824 

Available 
Revenue Princieal 

1.386.316 
2,431.062 190.000 
2.476.843 245.000 
1.695.870 260.000 
2.086,465 270.000 

Coverage 

3.33 
3.72 
4.87 
5.10 
5.84 
6.52 
7.53 
9.60 

nla 
nla 
nla 
nla 

Coveraae 

3.36 
1.73 
1.59 
1.61 

Water & Wastewater revenues include operating revenues. interest revenues. and 
capital impact fees. 
Operating expenses exclude depreciation and amortization 

Interest 

297.764 
627,473 
618.260 
605.635 
594.579 

Coveralle 

8.30 
11.44 
11.93 
14.55 
8.85 
8.81 

39.62 
nla 
nla 
nla 
nla 

Coverage 

4.92 
2.63 
3.50 
2.73 
2.28 

Coveralle 

4.66 
2.97 
2.87 
1.96 
2.41 

Water Certificates of Participation were refunded in advance with a portion of the proceeds from the 2006 Water 
Revenue Bonds. 

The RDA Tax Allocation Bonds were refunded in advance with a portion of the proceeds from the 2007 Revenue 
Bonds. 
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1 

Fiscal 
Year 

2001 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

"10,784 

11 

-11 

11 

11 

11,327 

11 

11 

Schedule 14 
City of Fortuna 

and Economic Statistics 
For The last Ten Fiscal Years 

Personal 
income 

10,340 

Per 
Personal 
income 

85 

Rate 

4.80% 

5.30% 

5.40%. 

520% 

5AO% 

4.90% 

5.20% 

6.40% 

970% 

1020% 

Per Personal & Unemployment Rate: Source: HdL Coren & Cone 
years, demographic information was for Humboldt as a whole. data 

HdL Coren & Cone is totaled from Census Block that boundries. 
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Schedule 15 
City of Fortuna 

Principal Employers (Ten Largest) 

(In Alphabetical Order) 

_ of Fortuna 
Eel RIver Disposal 
Fortuna Motors 
Fortuna Union Elementary School District 
Fortuna Union High School District 
Redwood Memorial Hospital 
Rohnerviiie School District 
Safeway 
St. Luke's Health Care 
Wendt Construction 

of Fortuna 
Eei River Disposal 
Fortuna Motors 
FOliuna Union Elementary School District 
Fortuna Union High School District 
Redwood Memorial Hospital 
Rohnerville School District 
Safeway 
St Luke's Health Care 
Wendt Construction 

City Fortuna 
Eel River Disposal 
FO!tuna Motors 
Fortuna Union Elementary School District 
Fortuna Union High School District 
Redwood Memorial Hospital 
Rohnerville School District 

S!. Lt,ke's Health Care 
Wendt Construction 

City of Fortuna 
Eel River Disposal 
Fortuna Motors 

,June 30, 2011 

Fortuna Union Elementary School District 
Fortuna Union High School District 
Redwood Memorial 
Rohnerville School District 
Safeway 
S! Luke's Health Care 
Wendt Construction 

Note Information about principal employers was not previously provided the 
City in the statistical section of its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report The 
City implemented GASB Statement Number 44 the 2006 fiscal year, and 
trlererme information in this schedule is being provided prospectively from the 
year of implementation. The California Employment Development Department 
considers the number of employees an employer has to be proprietary information. Thus 
the Fortuna is not providing total number of employees on this schedule. 

Sources: Fortuna Business Improvement District. Fortuna Chamber of Commerce, & 
Fortuna. 

Fiscal Year 2008 

City of Fortuna 
Eel River Disposal 
Fortuna Motors 
Fortuna Union Elementary Schoo! District 
Fortuna Union High School District 
Redwood Memorial Hospital 
Rohnerville School District 
Safeway 
SI. Luke's Health Care 
Wendt Construction 
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City of Fortuna. 
Ee! River Disposal 
Fortuna Motors 
fortuna Union Elementary School District 
Fortuna Union High School District 
Redwood Memorial Hospital 
Rohnerville School District 

S! Luke's Health Care 
Wendt Construction 



Function/Program 

General government: 

City Manager 
Finance 

Police 

Community Development 

Public Works/Environmental Services 

Parks and Recreation 

River Lodge Conference Center 

Transit 

Totals 

Schedule 16 
City of Fortuna 

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Full-Time Eguivalent Employees as of June 30 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 

3.00 4.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 4.00 4.00 
5.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 

23.00 23.00 21.00 23.00 23.00 24.00 24.00 24.00 

4.00 4.00 5.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.75 

19.00 21.00 24.00 23.00 24.00 24.00 25.00 28.00 

5.00 5.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 

3.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 2.00 2.00 

2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 

59.00 61.00 68.00 69.00 70.00 73.00 74.00 77.75 

99 

2010 2011 

4.00 4.00 
4.00 4.00 

25.00 26.00 

5.00 4.20 

30.00 30.50 

7.00 7.50 

2.00 2.00 

2.00 2.00 

79.00 80.20 



Schedule 17 
City of Fortuna 

Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 

Function/Pr29ram 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 ~ 2010 2011 

Police: 
Physical arrest 1,027 1,034 1,002 1,074 1,046 1,180 1,240 1,142 1,395 1,217 
Traffic violations 966 781 757 860 1,132 899 950 841 1,864 1,035 

Planning: 
Building permits issued 317 283 388 338 308 317 279 265 200 311 

Public works: 
Miles streets resurfaced 0.50 0.75 1.00 0.50 1.50 0.50 0.33 0.50 0.50 1.00 

Riverlodge/Monday Club 
Communtiy Events Held 250 312 300 313 354 410 410 382 312 455 

Parks and Recreation: 
Recreation Program Admissions 2 25,570 29,719 37,869 41,104 40,810 47,368 36,791 6,861 9,753 9,753 

Water: 
Number new connections 83 92 53 130 86 86 80 20 9 11 
Daily average water 
production in MGD 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.30 1.20 1.20 1.20 

Daily average water 
consumption in MGD 1.30 1.30 1.40 1.30 1.30 1.40 1.30 1.20 1.20 1.20 

Wastewater: 
Number new connections 95 109 63 121 81 89 68 24 7 11 
Daily average treatment 

in millions gallons(MGD) 1.10 1.30 1.20 1.30 1.30 1.20 1.20 1.00 1.10 1.10 

Police and Parks & Recreation statistics are reported on a calander year (January· December) basis. 

2 Beginning in 2009, the Excel Program is no longer admistered through the City's Parks and Recreation Department 
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Police: 
Stations 
Patrol Units 7 

Public Works: 
Miles streets 52 
Streetlights 600 
Traffic signals :i 

Riverlodge/Monday Club 
Community centers 

Parks and Recreation: 
Parks 2 
Park acreage 85 
Skate Pavilion 1 
Museum 

Water: 
Number connections 4,944-
Maximum plant capacity 
in miilions gallons 2."10 

Wastewater: 
Miles of sewers 38 
Number GOnnections 4,636 
Maximum plant capacity 
in millions gallons 120 

Schedule 18 
City of Fortuna 

Capital Asset Statistics by FUl1ction/Progmnl 
Last Ten FisG!'l! Yearn 

B 9 11 i2 

62 52 52 52 53 
605 610 615 620 620 

3 3 4 4 4 

2 2 2 2 2 

2 2 2 2 2 
85 85 85 85 85 

1 1 1 
1 'I 

5,036 5,089 5,219 5,305 5,39'1 

2,'10 3.00 3,00 3.00 3.00 

38 38 42 42 42 
4,745 4,808 4,929 5,010 5,099 

L20 1.20 1.20 1,50 1,50 

12 13 i" ,j 15 

54 54 54 ·54 
623 623 62~'l 62.3 

5 5 f." ,J 

2 2 2 2 

2 2 2 2 
85 85 85 85 

1 1 

5A7') 5.491 5,500 5,510 

3.10 3,10 3,10 3,10 

42 42 42 42 
5,167 5,191 5,198 5,208 

.50 1.50 ,50 1.50 


